
 

 

NOTICE OF A MEETING 

 

COMMUNITY ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

111 LIBERTY STREET, SUITE 100 

COLUMBUS, OH 43215 

SCIOTO CONFERENCE ROOM 

 

Monday, August 31, 2015 

5:30 p.m. 

 

AGENDA 

 

5:30 p.m. 1. Welcome – David Paul, Chair 

 

5:31 p.m. 2. Approval of June 29, 2015 Minutes (enclosed) 

 

5:32 p.m. 3. Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) Report (enclosed) – Thea Walsh 

 COTA Update - Belinda Taylor 

 Operation Lifesaver - Railroad Safety Program - Gena Shelton 

 Planning and Environment Updates - Kerstin Carr 

 

5:50 p.m. 4. Freeway Traffic Management Study - Nick Gill/Brent Bogard, ODOT 

 
6:05 p.m. 5. Metropolitan Transportation Plan (MTP) Update 

 MTP Candidate Projects and Update - Maria Schaper 

 

6:20 p.m. 6. Proposed Resolutions: 

 T-15-15: "AMENDING THE STATE FISCAL YEAR (SFY) 2016-2019 

TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM" (enclosed) - Nick Gill 

 T-16-15: "ADOPTING THE 2015 PUBLIC INVOLVEMENT PLAN" (enclosed) - 

Bernice Cage 

 T-17-15: "ESTABLISHING PRIORITIES FOR APPLICATIONS SUBMITTED TO 

THE OHIO STATWIDE URBAN CMAQ COMMITTEE" (enclosed) - Nick Gill 

 T-18-15: "ACCEPTING THE PWP COMPLETION REPORT FOR STATE FISCAL 

YEAR 2015" (enclosed) - Thea Walsh 

 

6:35 p.m. 7. Informational Items: 

 High-Crash Location Lists - Jordan Whisler 

 RideSolutions Strategic Plan - Dan Sheehan 

 

6:50 p.m. 8. Committee Business - Bernice Cage 

 

7:00 p.m. 9. Other Business 



 
 
CAC Meeting Agenda 

August 31, 2015 

Page 2 

 

 
 

PLEASE NOTIFY BRENDA NOÉ AT 614-233-4146 or bnoe@morpc.org 
TO CONFIRM YOUR ATTENDANCE FOR THIS MEETING OR 

IF YOU REQUIRE SPECIAL ASSISTANCE 
 
 
 

The next CAC Meeting is Monday, September 28, 2015 @ 5:30 p.m. 
111 Liberty Street, Suite 100 

Columbus, Ohio 43215 
 
 

When you arrive in MORPC’s lobby, a video screen will display current and 
upcoming meetings. Each meeting will list a phone extension. Use the phone 
provided in the lobby to call the extension and the person contacted will 
come escort you to the meeting. 
 
When parking in MORPC's parking lot, please be sure to park in a MORPC 
visitor space or in a space marked with an “M.” Handicapped parking is 
available at the side of MORPC’s building. MORPC is accessible by CBUS. 

 

 
 
 

mailto:bnoe@morpc.org


COMMUNITY ADVISORY COMMITTEE MEETING 

June 29, 2015 

Meeting Summary 

 

MORPC 

111 Liberty Street, Suite 100 

Columbus, Ohio  

5:30 p.m. 

 

Members 

Bill Allman    Stephanie Bosco   William Curlis 

Len Fisher    LaGrieta Holloway   David Paul 

J.M. Rayburn    Fred Rea    Larry Robertson 

Belkis Schoenhals   Ira Weiss 

 

Guests 

Lisa Daris, Prospective Member 

Jon-Paul D'Aversa, Prospective Member 

Jack Marchbanks, Citizen 

Bob Roehm, Prospective Member 

Joel Spokas, Citizen 

Belinda Taylor, COTA 

 

MORPC Staff 

Rachael Beeman   Jacob Boehk    Bernice Cage 

Kerstin Carr    Evelyn Ebert    Nick Gill 

Laura Koprowski   Amanda McEldowney   Brenda Noé 

Maria Schaper    Bevan Schneck    Thea Walsh 

Jordan Whisler 

 

1. Welcome. Chair David Paul called the meeting to order at 5:33 p.m. and introduced guests. 

 

2. Approval of June 1, 2015 Minutes. Bill Curlis moved to accept the June 1, 2015 minutes, 

and Len Fisher seconded. The motion carried. 

 

3. Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) Report. Thea Walsh reported that Connect 

Columbus will hold its third charrette at the Franklin County Board of Elections, 1700 Morse 

Road, from July 13th - July 16th. 

 

 Committee work is ongoing in Congress on THUD (Transportation and Housing and Urban 

Development) for transportation appropriations and on the DRIVE act, which is the 6-year 

transportation bill. 

 

 MORPC's Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) was approved by FHWA. MORPC did not 

exceed the allowable carryover limit by ODOT. This means we will not lose any money from 

the previous fiscal year. 

 

 Groveport, in coordination with Obetz and COTA, has begun a new program to help people get 

to and from work in the Rickenbacker area. 

 



Community Advisory Committee Meeting Summary 

June 29, 2015 

Page 2 

 

 2 

 COTA Update. Belinda Taylor talked about the new bus on shoulder project. There is 

currently a bus on shoulder project on the I-70 corridor out to SR 256. It allows a bus to 

get into the right shoulder lane, at the driver's discretion, if traffic is slower than 35 MPH. 

COTA is now introducing the bus on shoulder project for I-670 from the east side to I-270; 

however, this bus on shoulder project will be on the left shoulder. This will be 

implemented in September 2015. Operator training has begun. 

 

Taylor then discussed the CMAX project. If the President's bill passes, COTA will be able 

to collect 80 percent of the cost for the project from the Federal Transit Administration to 

keep it moving forward. COTA is prepared to begin construction as early as December 

2015. 

 

COTA and the City of Dublin have reached an agreement on the location for a park and 

ride. The former area was displaced because of new development. This will be a 

temporary location (Taylor distributed a map or the temporary and final sites). COTA 

hopes to open this park and ride in late 2016 or early 2017. 

 

Taylor said that an agreement was reached with the COTA board to partner with the City 

of Columbus (seven-year contract) to use the McKinley Avenue CNG fueling station. It will 

add six dispensers specifically for the City of Columbus and two will be open to the 

public. The city has agreed to reimburse COTA for some of the earlier process and 

development for the project.  

 

COTA now has 104 CNG buses on the street. Hopefully, by 2020, COTA will be entirely 

CNG-fueled. 

 

Bernice Cage asked how late the CBUS will run for Red, White and Boom. Taylor said that 

all buses will run until the last person has been picked up. 

 

Taylor added that COTA's annual luncheon is Thursday, August 20th, at 11:30 a.m. at the 

Hyatt Regency. Keynote speaker is Bob Morgan, President and CEO of the Charlotte 

Chamber of Commerce. 

 

 Quarterly Air Quality Update. Evelyn Ebert explained that during the procurement process 

for forecasters last fall, a strong message we received from our stakeholder group is that 

our Air Quality Awareness program needs more visibility. MORPC (in partnership with Ohio 

Air Quality Development Authority) is in contract with ABC6 on a comprehensive 

marketing package for the month of June to be extended possibly through August. Five 

air quality awareness PSAs are either in production or currently being deployed 

throughout the 6-county region for which MORPC forecasts air quality. The package 

included also one targeted e-mail marketing campaign, three promoted social media 

posts, and two Good Day Marketplace morning show appearances. MORPC Executive 

Director William Murdock appeared on Good Day Marketplace on June 11th and OAQDA's 

Executive Director is scheduled to appear on the show in July. MORPC is also partnering 

with the Dispatch Media Group on a comprehensive digital advertising campaign 

targeted toward local businesses for the month of June. 

MORPC also welcomed Dan Alrick in June, a meteorologist and project manager from 

Sonoma Technology, Inc. (STI). MORPC partners with STI to serve as air quality 

forecasters for the Central Ohio region. The program provides the public with daily 



Community Advisory Committee Meeting Summary 

June 29, 2015 

Page 3 

 

 3 

forecasts of air pollution concentrations in Central Ohio. Armed with this information, the 

public can take proactive steps to reduce exposure to unhealthy levels of ozone and fine 

particulate air pollution. 

On Thursday, June 11th, MORPC Air Quality staff introduced Dan Alrick to the MORPC 

Commission, and he addressed ozone pollution trends in the region and how Central 

Ohio compares nationally. While Mr. Alrick was in Columbus, MORPC brought together all 

the working parts of Central Ohio’s Air Quality forecasting and alerts. Alrick and the 

MORPC Air Quality team met with Chris Bradley of WBNS-10TV, Ben Gelber at NBC4, and 

later with ABC6 to discuss how they provide Central Ohioans with air quality information. 

Alrick and members of the Air Quality team also met with Ohio EPA and Ohio Air Quality 

Development Authority (OAQDA) representatives to discuss the National Ambient Air 

Quality Standards and the implications of a potential stricter standard on the region. 

 

Paul wanted to make sure that assisted living and other senior residential facilities 

received this information. Ebert said she will look into this. 

 

4. Metropolitan Transportation Plan (MTP): 

 MTP Candidate Projects and Update. Maria Schaper stated that MORPC is working to 

collect candidate projects that will be evaluated using our project evaluation criteria. The 

interactive web map that she presented last month has been up and running for about a 

week, resulting in over 130 comments and over 100 project suggestions. She 

encouraged everyone to use the interactive map. 

 

Schaper reminded everyone that the goals, objectives and targets have been 

established, and we have identified where future growth is likely to occur 

(http://www.morpc.org/Assets/MORPC/files/20150629_CAC_MTPStatusUpdateand%2

0StrategiesDevelopment.pdf). We are now looking at the plan strategies, which have 

been categorized into two types: system development and system management. The 

system development strategies focus on expanding the system and improving access 

and connectivity, and they are further developed through the identification of projects, 

which we are now doing through the web map. System strategies focus on making sure 

the existing system is maintained in a state of good repair and operated efficiency. 

Strategies include operations and maintenance, safety and security, and demand 

management. Today Schaper focused on operations and maintenance and safety and 

security. In September Schaper will cover demand management strategy and the 

financial forecast. Later in the fall we will talk about impact of the strategies and projects. 

 

Operations and maintenance are important because the region actually spends more 

money on this category than on any other category in the transportation plan. Specific 

projects are not identified in the plan because they are more routine in nature and 

happen more quickly. Project types that are to maintain the current system include 

reconstruction, resurfacing, bridge replacement, other maintenance projects, and 

intelligent transportation systems. We are currently working to update the regional 

intelligent transportation systems architecture. 

 

Safety and security are also important components of the plan. We are constantly 

collecting, analyzing and reporting crash data to make our transportation system safer. 

MORPC acts as the regional resource for planning and coordinating security among the 

communities in its region. 

http://www.morpc.org/Assets/MORPC/files/20150629_CAC_MTPStatusUpdateand%20StrategiesDevelopment.pdf
http://www.morpc.org/Assets/MORPC/files/20150629_CAC_MTPStatusUpdateand%20StrategiesDevelopment.pdf


Community Advisory Committee Meeting Summary 

June 29, 2015 

Page 4 

 

 4 

 

Next steps include collecting comments and suggestions on candidate projects through 

August. We will then evaluate those projects using the evaluation criteria we adopted. 

 

Fisher said he thought that Front Street as it goes over the freeway was replaced just a 

few years ago, and he noticed that it is crumbling. He asked about the inspection 

process. Nick Gill said that the bridge over the freeway is not new, but some cosmetic 

repairs may have been done to it. The Front Street Bridge over I-70 will be replaced with 

the I-70/I-71 project.  

 

Lisa Daris wanted to know how projects got on the list. Schaper said that right now we 

want to identify all of the transportation needs in the region, but since this is a fiscally 

constrained plan we cannot include all of them. We will come back with a shorter list that 

have best met the established criteria. 

 

5. Proposed Resolutions: 

 T-13-15: "Amending the State Fiscal Year (SFY) 2016-2019 Transportation Improvement 

Program." Nick Gill said that this resolution adds an intersection improvement project for 

which Columbus received funding; ODOT District 5 has a culvert to be added; for ODOT 

District 6, a project cost estimate involving MORPC funding went up for a project in the 

City of Delaware, and the city has asked to use some of the STP funds attributed to 

Delaware to cover that cost increase; there is also a cost adjustment for parts of the I-71 

project widening between Stringtown Road and the SR 315/I-70 interchange. 

 

Ira Weiss moved to adopt Resolution T-13-15, and Fisher seconded. The motion carried. 

 

 T-14-15: "Adopting the Federal Functional Classification and Federal-Aid Highway System 

in the MORPC Transportation Planning Area." Schaper explained that the federal 

functional classification and federal-aid system are updated every 10 years, following the 

census. The federal-aid system identifies the roadways that are eligible for federal 

funding and classifies the routes based on function and level of access. The resolution 

map identifies the functionally classified roads. In February 2014 MORPC performed a 

coordinated review with all of the communities within the MPO and adjacent to the MPO 

to review the federal functional classification system. Our recommended changes were 

sent to ODOT, and ODOT will submit it to FHWA for approval.  

 

Bill Allman asked how often the federal functional classification and federal-aid highway 

system are revised. Schaper replied that we do this every 10 years following the census. 

Gill added that it could be amended in between census reports if something comes up.  

 

Weiss moved for approval, and Fred Rea seconded. The motion carried. 

 

6. Informational Items: 

 PIP Update. Bernice Cage reported on the draft Public Involvement Plan. Her PowerPoint 

presentation is available at: 

http://www.morpc.org/Assets/MORPC/files/20150629_CAC_2015_Draft_PublicInvolve

mentPlan.pdf 

 

Belkis Schoenhals asked how we communicate with non-English-speaking communities. 

Cage replied that we will engage a member of their community and speak through that 

http://www.morpc.org/Assets/MORPC/files/20150629_CAC_2015_Draft_PublicInvolvementPlan.pdf
http://www.morpc.org/Assets/MORPC/files/20150629_CAC_2015_Draft_PublicInvolvementPlan.pdf


Community Advisory Committee Meeting Summary 

June 29, 2015 

Page 5 

 

 5 

member. We have brought community members to MORPC and given them 

presentations through a translator. We also have printed materials in other languages. 

 

 Systematic Safety Improvement. Jordan Whisler reported on this subject. His PowerPoint 

presentation is available at: 

http://www.morpc.org/Assets/MORPC/files/20150629_CAC_SystematicSafetyImprove

ment.pdf 

 

Fisher asked what MORPC's position is on red-light cameras. Whisler replied that from a 

safety perspective it can be seen that they reduce serious injuries and fatalities, mainly 

reducing intersection crashes. William Murdock added that MORPC has been an 

advocate of any measure for safety. 

 

J.M. Rayburn said that he works downtown, and crosswalks are constantly an issue when 

it comes to safety. He did not expect MORPC take on the full burden of figuring out the 

answer to this problem, and Rayburn will notify local law enforcement to try to take some 

kind of action. He wondered if there were any action that MORPC could take. Whisler said 

that we need some lower-cost solutions for this problem and recognize that treatments 

are available. We have been involved in pedestrian safety stings in the past. Paul said 

that there were three counter measures in Whisler's report, but that there were more 

than three counter measures available. Whisler said that for this particular phase of the 

project the three measures he discussed will be implemented across jurisdictions in this 

region. 

 

 Economic Impact of Trails. Amanda McEldowney reported on this subject. Her PowerPoint 

presentation is available at: 

http://www.morpc.org/Assets/MORPC/files/20150629_CAC_ImpactofTrailsStudy.pdf 

 

Bill Allman asked if we have a map of the defined fully completed system. McEldowney 

said he could look at the Greenways map, which will show completed and proposed trails 

along all of our waterways. The Central Ohio Greenways (COG) Board will be looking at 

access points leading into neighborhoods to provide connections for the east-west 

connectors. 

 

Joel Spokas wanted to know if MORPC obtained an average distance driven in the miles 

driven to and from trails. McEldowney said that we did. Paul asked if MORPC only studied 

properties that adjoined the trail and if there were any investigation of distance from the 

trail. McEldowney said they studied properties within a half-mile. Paul then asked if there 

were any investigation of distance from the trail. Weiss added that the Greenway Trail 

System is just a fraction of all the multi-use paths that exist in Central Ohio. Daris asked 

if there were an advocate voice for bike lanes along bridges that are being replaced. 

McEldowney said that we will be looking at that with the development of the new COG 

Board. Committees will work with jurisdictions to put these in place. Additionally, if there 

are federal funds involved when we are reviewing those plans we will ask for additional 

facilities to be put in place. Schoenhals asked about visibility on the trails at night. 

McEldowney said that the majority of people feel safe on the trails, but we will bring it up 

in our committees. Allman asked if any of the trails were maintained by businesses, etc. 

McEldowney said that there were. 

 

7. Committee Business. Cage said that MORPC is considering several people for membership.  

http://www.morpc.org/Assets/MORPC/files/20150629_CAC_SystematicSafetyImprovement.pdf
http://www.morpc.org/Assets/MORPC/files/20150629_CAC_SystematicSafetyImprovement.pdf
http://www.morpc.org/Assets/MORPC/files/20150629_CAC_ImpactofTrailsStudy.pdf


Community Advisory Committee Meeting Summary 

June 29, 2015 

Page 6 

 

 6 

 

8. Other Business. Fisher moved to adjourn the meeting and Rea seconded. The motion 

carried, and the meeting adjourned at 6:57 p.m. 

 

 

 

Bernice Cage 

Secretary 



1  

 
MORPC Monthly Metropolitan Transportation Organization Summary 

 
July/August 2015 

 

Transportation Systems & Funding 

Thea Walsh - twalsh@morpc.org 

 

 Metropolitan Transportation Plan (MTP) 

Approximately 3,500 postcards and emails were sent announcing the 2016-2040 MTP 

Interactive Webmap, asking for public input and recommendations for projects. MTP 

newsletter with Candidate Project Location Map and list of Candidate Projects were sent to 

Neighborhood Pride Centers, libraries, city engineers and service directors, county engineers 

and township officials. Over 240 new projects have been suggested through the interactive 

webmap and over 350 comments on projects have been posted on the interactive webmap. 

The project evaluation for the projects is beginning. Staff continue to coordinate the MTP 

activities with the Columbus Connect planning process and COTA’s NextGen planning 

process. 

 

 Highways 

Assistance is being provided in terms of future traffic projects for several member planning 

activities including: 

o Powell Comprehensive Plan 

o Westerville Comprehensive Plan 

o SR 161 Western Licking County Corridor Study 

o City of Delaware Thoroughfare Plan Update 

o Easton Area Traffic Projections 

 

 Transit/Human Services 

The Groveport shuttle (GREAT) is expected to begin service on September 28, 2015. 

 

A "kickoff'" meeting was held for the DATABus Transit Development Plan and Funding Study 

on August 11th. Parsons Brinckerhoff's Tim Reynolds facilitated the meeting with the steering 

committee. DATABus is waiting for its architectural firm to finish revisions to the facility 

remodel plans so that ODOT can give final approval to move forward with the construction 

bidding. 

 

 RideSolutions 

A draft Transportation Demand Management (TDM) strategic plan was completed. It builds off 

the plan developed in 2011. It has undergone internal review and will be presented to CAC 

and TAC at the September meetings.  

 

RideSolutions staff along with transportation partners COTA, Yay Bikes, CoGo bikes, and Car-

2-Go participated in Nationwide's monthly sustainability meeting. Nationwide Green team 

members across the United States were educated about sustainable transportation options to 

mailto:twalsh@morpc.org


2  

work and options to travel around while at work. Around 300 green team members 

participated in person, on phone and by webinar. 

 

RideSolutions staff started a new vanpool to Columbus from Zanesville. RideSolutions staff 

continues to work with J.P. Morgan Chase, Stanley Electric, Crowne Plaza Hotel, Chalmers P. 

Wylie VA Clinic, and the Chillicothe VA Hospital to initiate transportation plans for their 

employees. 

 

A survey of area employers is being developed to support the Polaris Parkway area 

collaborative. In addition, an informational flyer is being developed to distribute to interested 

parties to educate them on transportation & TDM investment in the corridor. 

 

 Infrastructure Funding 

Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) 

Copies of the Final SFY 2016-2019 TIP were sent to libraries in Delaware, Fairfield, Franklin 

and Licking counties. A copy of the Short-Range Transit Plan (SRTP) was sent with the TIPs to 

libraries in Franklin County. A popular TIP is being developed and will be provided during the 

September committee meetings. 

 

Transportation Review and Advisory Council (TRAC) 

One-page information sheets on the four projects submitted this year for TRAC funding were 

developed and posted on the MORPC website. MORPC is taking comments on the projects 

through September 11th. These comments will be used to help staff prepare 

recommendations for project rankings that will be established during the October committee 

meetings. 

 

Franklin County Infrastructure Bank 

 Franklin County Infrastructure Bank Loan Advisory board recommended the following three 

 projects to the Franklin County Commissioners for a 10-year loan at 1.7%: 
  
 1) Whitehall - North Hamilton Road Improvements    $550,000 
 2) Upper Arlington - Municipal Fiber Network  $1,000,000 
 3) Marble Cliff - Cardigan Water Improvements    $125,000 

 

 Ohio Public Works Commission 

Staff met with City of Columbus, OPWC and ODOT officials to review the proposed Phase 4A 

Livingston Avenue improvement and determine what, if any components might be eligible for 

OPWC infrastructure funding in Round 30. 

 

 Staff is reviewing the status of 55 active OPWC-funded projects in order to determine which 

 older projects may be able to be closed out. Staff will contact Franklin County officials  

 to close out old projects and return additional funding as well as avoid penalty points for 

 applicants who are applying for new projects in Round 30. 



3  

 

Data and Mapping 

Nancy Reger - nreger@morpc.org 
 
  Regional Data Task Force 

The Regional Data Site Task Force met on July 16th for its final information gathering meeting. 

Discussion centered around governance structures for managing the site, and funding ideas 

for building it and maintaining it. The recommendations from the Task Force are being drafted 

now, and the group will come together in October to finalize the recommendations before 

presenting the results to the Commission. 

 

  Data Sharing 

The sidewalk inventory GIS file is now on-line for viewing on an interactive map in the Map 

Room in the Data, Mapping and Tools section of MORPC’s website. 

 

  Data and Mappings Role in the Metropolitan Transportation Plan 

The detailed projections for years 2025, 2040, and 2050 being used in the MORPC 

Metropolitan Transportation Plan, the COTA NextGen Plan, and the Connect Columbus plan 

are available for downloading from MORPC’s website, and an interactive map of the 

projections by community sub-areas can be accessed through either the Map Room on 

MORPC’s website, or the MTP portion of the Transportation area. 

 

The new interactive map for users to make comments or draw their own ideas directly on the 

map is in full swing. We have received 600 comments and suggestions. Opportunity for 

providing input closes on August 31st.   

 

Data and Mapping staff are now preparing the database for staff to use when evaluating 

candidate projects. This includes a user interface that includes results from automated 

calculations of quantitative evaluation criteria, and the ability for users to enter qualitative 

statements about the projects and scoring information. In addition, we are creating a webmap 

for internal use so reviewers can toggle on and off evaluation criteria when making their 

recommendations. 

 

  insight2050 Phase 2 

Draft development typologies have been identified and are being mapped using GIS analysis 

tools. The types follow those development types identified in insight2050 as Rural, Suburban 

Standard, Suburban Compact, and Urban, with an additional geographic dimension that 

includes nodes, corridors, neighborhoods and downtowns. The first round of mapping the 

typologies is nearly complete. 

 

Work on the infill directory has taken a back seat to the typology work; however, we have 

identified vacant parcels using aerial photography, auditor data, and GIS. We have also laid 

out some strategies in clarifying what constitutes underutilized sites based on work done for 

the 2016-2040 MTP land use forecasts. 

 

  COSMOS Public Fiber Project 

Data and Mapping is working with the representatives from local IT departments' communities 

that are involved with COSMOS (Central Ohio Systems Management Organizational Sharing). 

They have asked MORPC to facilitate shared data sets of public fiber systems and research 

ways to fund connections for the various public fiber systems. We presented some basic 

information to COSMOS in Hilliard on July 15th. A subgroup was identified with representatives 

from Gahanna, Grove City, Lancaster, Westerville and Whitehall to provide guidance moving 

forward. MORPC will present again at the October 14th meeting, which will be held at MORPC. 

 

file:///C:/Users/shufstedler/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.Outlook/QEPGBLFF/nreger@morpc.org


4  

  Homes on the Hill  

The Data and Mapping Department is working with Homes on the Hill to develop a 

quantifiable method for choosing where Homes on the Hill, a non-profit housing agency that 

works in the southwest portion of Franklin County, would get the best return on its 

investments. We will be using address-based data from such sources as the Columbus 311 

dataset, county auditor, and Hands on Central Ohio in the analysis.  

 

  Land Use Projections for Special Transportation Studies 

Every transportation study that uses MORPC’s travel demand model includes a land use 

component. Even though the regional land use projections were recently completed, we tweak 

them for special studies because they have some constraints that don’t lend themselves to 

actually sizing infrastructure needs. The projections for the Delaware City Thoroughfare Plan 

were recently modified based on input from the Delaware County RPC and the Delaware City 

Planning Department. Another project is underway for the Easton area, and modified 

projections are being reviewed by the City of Columbus, Franklin County Economic 

Development, New Albany, and Gahanna. 

 

  Information Requests 

o City of Gahanna - Economic information about Central Ohio cities  

o Ross County - Demographic summaries of Central Ohio cities' population projections in 5- 

year incremental periods 

o City of Columbus – population projections in increments between 2015 and 2040 were 

provided to consultant working Columbus infrastructure plans 

o Groveport/Madison Township – hard copy sidewalk maps 

o Brice – hard copy sidewalk maps 

 

 Non-Member Information Requests 

o City of Circleville – population projections in increments between 2015 and 2040 were 

provided to consultant working on an economic revitalization plan for Circleville  

o Dublin City Schools – population estimates for their CAFR 

o Southwestern City School – population estimates for their CAFR 

o Franklin County Budget Commission – population estimates for the library districts in 

Franklin County 

 

  Mobile Bikeway App 

MORPC’s Data & Mapping and Planning & Environment Departments met with OSU’s Kirwan 

Institute to discuss the possibility of the university helping us to develop a mobile app of the 

regional bikeway system. This was a preliminary discussion for the possibility of an App 

development class using MORPC as a class project. The class will not begin until January.   

 

 

MORPC Planning and Environment Department 

Kerstin Carr - kcarr@morpc.org 
 

  Active Transportation Planning 

Staff participated in the monthly “Ohio Bicycle Call.” This month’s call focused on Ohio 

HB154, the 3-foot passing rule for which MORPC recently wrote a letter of support, and 

ODOT’s provision of the League of American Bicyclist’s ”Quick Cycling Guide” to MPOs o 

sharing with their communities. Copies will be forthcoming later this summer/fall. 

 

Staff attended the “Sitting is the New Smoking” CMC luncheon that addressed the importance 

of implementing policy and design that promotes daily activity.  

 

mailto:kcarr@morpc.org


5  

MORPC staff attended a site visit at the Grandview Goodale Avenue OPWC project. The city 

showcased how it used funds on the project to incorporate Complete Streets components, 

including a bike lane, curbs and gutters, and sidewalks.  

 

Both Orange Township and the Short North Alliance borrowed MORPC's automated infrared 

pedestrian and bicycle counters. The Short North Alliance used the counters to collect volume 

information during the June Gallery Hop. Orange Township collected volumes at 8 sites 

throughout the municipality. 

 

Staff has completed a Semi-Annual Volunteer Count report that summarizes results from the 

May 2015 volunteer pedestrian and bicyclist counts. The report is available online. 

 

Team members participated in an on-road training with YayBikes! to learn how YayBikes! 

exposes people who are interested in integrating biking into their travel habits to different 

bicycling conditions. YayBikes! added an engineering/planning conversation component to 

the training so that MORPC staff could talk with one another about how the on-road 

experience influences design and how different bicycle infrastructure types are context-

sensitive. 

 

MORPC staff met with employees from the Columbus’ Division of Traffic Management to bring 

them up-to-speed on the progress of the Active Transportation Plan and how it will be 

coordinated and integrated with Connect Columbus. They also discussed the idea of MORPC 

collaborating with them on their September Connect Columbus charrette and open house. 

COTA is already participating, and it seems to be a sensible partnership to reach out to the 

public on these different yet connected transportation planning initiatives. 

 

Progress on development of the Park & Pedal program continues. The signs were printed and 

bike “fix-it” stations were ordered. Staff produced a project charter to guide project 

development and implementation.  

 

Staff began working toward an update of the Bike Users Map by producing a project charter to 

guide project development and implementation.  

 

  Transportation Safety 

Staff participated in the regularly-scheduled Columbus Area Pedestrian Safety Committee 

(CAPS) meeting. At this meeting, current pedestrian education safety campaigns were 

discussed, along with the potential for creating one centered on distracted walking. 

 

Staff participated in the regularly-scheduled Fatality Review Board meeting. During this 

meeting individual fatal crashes were examined in order to identify common themes and 

inform future efforts.  

 

Staff has drafted an update of the annual crash fast sheets and has shared drafts of the 

2012 - 2014 high-crash locations lists. All lists will be presented during September committee 

meetings. 

 

Staff attended the pre-construction meeting for PID 98818 (signal upgrades included in the 

first phase of the Systematic Safety Improvement Pilot Project) at ODOT District 6. During this 

meeting, the project plan set was reviewed with the project contractor. 

 

Staff continued work on the Systematic Safety Improvement Pilot Project, Phase 2, which 

focuses on pedestrian safety improvements. MORPC has collected input from communities on 

potential project locations and submitted it to ODOT and the engineering consulting firm for 

review. 

 



6  

Staff participated in the "Whistle-Stop Safety Train" tour hosted jointly by the Ohio chapter of 

Operation Lifesaver and Norfolk-Southern. While aboard, they listened to presentations from 

both rail safety advocates and freight operations staff. 

 

As part of the OSU Summer Youth Program, staff presented to high school students on 

transportation safety issues such as distracted driving, seat belt usage, and impaired driving. 

 

  insight2050 

MORPC hired Jennifer Noll as the new Associate Planner focused on helping to implement 

Phase II of insight2050. Her immediate focus is gathering best practices and working on 

creating an Impact Report.  

 

Staff continued outreach of insight2050 during July and August. The following presentations 

were given: 

 Baltimore Village Council 

 COTA Planning Committee 

 Rotary Club of Dublin-Worthington 

 Galena Village Council 

 Grove City SALT – Seniors and Law Enforcement Together 

 EMH&T 

 

Staff attended a meeting with the Ohio Osteopathic Heritage Foundation regarding potential 

partnership opportunities to advance issues in insight2050 related to lifelong communities 

and Age-Friendly City designation. 

 

ULI Columbus and MORPC partnered to offer the ULI Real Estate class on redeveloping aging 

commercial strip centers. The event will take place on August 27th. 

 

Staff facilitated a meeting of the Northwest Area Group in Powell. The City of Powell presented 

on the use of Mind Mixer for public involvement with its Comprehensive Plan, and the City of 

Dublin presented on its canoe access points and all the activities it has planned on the water. 

Eighteen people participated in the meeting. 

 

Staff facilitated a meeting of the Southwest Area Group at the Franklin County Engineer’s 

West Maintenance Facility. The Franklin County Engineer’s Office presented on several 

infrastructure projects and the history of the office. A representative from the State Auditor’s 

office presented on the ShareOhio.gov program. A roundtable discussion followed with 

sharing of infrastructure and planning projects happening with the following organizations: 

ODOT District 6, City of Columbus, Franklin County Engineer, MORPC, and COTA. Fifteen 

people participated in the meeting. 

 

  InfoShare 

Staff facilitated an InfoShare meeting with Etna Township. They discussed some infrastructure 

projects happening in the township, including an ODOT bridge project that has the township 

considering a zoning update to align with some principles of insight2050. 

 

Staff facilitated an InfoShare meeting with MetroParks. They discussed impending openings 

of Rocky Fork and Scioto Grove parks, and the current strategic planning process. They also 

showed interest in discussing ways to manage 400 acres of their farmland in ways that 

showcase methods that protect waterways. 

 

Staff facilitated an InfoShare meeting with Logan-Union-Champaign (LUC) Regional Planning 

Commission. They discussed some ongoing development activity in Jerome Township, and the 

Logan-Champaign Rural Transportation Planning Organization’s (RTPO) completion of a 



7  

transportation plan. The RTPO now is collaborating with LUC on an Indian Lake transportation 

overview and a freight profile of the Rt. 33 and Rt. 68 corridors. 

 

Staff facilitated an InfoShare meeting with Worthington. They discussed different 

development projects happening within the city. They had a lot to share regarding public 

opinion on density and development types. Staff followed up to discuss how the public’s 

concerns/opinions can be addressed in the next phase of insight2050. 

 

Staff facilitated an InfoShare meeting with Marysville. They discussed several infill housing 

developments, as well as some infrastructure projects and some active transportation plans. 

 

Staff will facilitate an InfoShare meeting with Marble Cliff on August 21, 2015. 

 

  Impact of Trails Study 

The Impact of Trails Study has been completed. The final report, along with an executive 

summary, technical memoranda, and fact sheets are available online at 

www.morpc.org/trailstudy. MORPC, MetroParks, and Columbus Recreation and Parks held a 

press conference in early August to publicly release the findings. The report received good 

media coverage. 

 

MORPC staff will work with its partners to discuss the implementation of the 

recommendations provided in the final report, especially the continuation of regular 

comprehensive trail user counts. 

 

  Greenways & Water Quality Program 

The Central Ohio Greenways (COG) Board had its kick-off meeting at the end of June. Nearly 

20 board members were in attendance. The COG Board kick-off meeting consisted of a 

presentation by the chair, Tony Collins, on the structure of the board and a visioning exercise 

about priorities for the board to focus on in the next 5 years. The members split out into small 

groups based on the Working Teams to brainstorm ideas of projects that can be accomplished 

in the first year. Also, the vice chair, Ted Miller, gave an overview of the COG Strategic Plan 

that will be the focus of the board in the coming months. The next board meeting is scheduled 

for August 26th. 

 

A total of 6 firms responded to the request for proposals to do a COG Board strategic plan. 

The board's executive committee narrowed down the proposals to two finalists and invited 

both firms to come in for interviews. 

 

Riverfest continued with sold-out events on Big Walnut Creek and the Scioto River. The Big 

Walnut Creek event was a 2-mile paddle from Nafzger Park to Helsel Park. Thirty people 

participated. The Scioto River event was in partnership with the City of Dublin and included a 

3-mile paddle from O'Shaughnessy Dam to beneath the I-270 overpass. Twenty-nine people 

participated.  

 

MORPC has partnered with Franklin Soil & Water Conservation District (FSWCD) as a 

subcontractor in applying for Ohio EPA’s “319 Grant.” The grant proposal is intended to focus 

on regional watershed implementation support projects in the Mid-Scioto Watershed 

(Delaware, Franklin, and Union counties). MORPC's role will focus on facilitating meetings, 

helping to identify critical watershed areas where implementation is needed, outreach 

assistance, and facilitating public involvement. Grant awards announcements are expected in 

fall 2015 with funding allocations in January 2016.  

 

Staff attended a meeting with FSWCD and its outreach consultant – BlueStem 

Communications – to discuss the new effort to change behaviors related to lawn care 



8  

practices in Central Ohio. MORPC will continue to be involved to learn about BlueStem’s 

environmentally focused social change model and to assist FSWCD with spreading the new 

marketing materials once they are developed. 

 

  Regional Food Council 

The July Regional Food Council meeting had a total of 16 people in attendance. The meeting 

entailed vigorous and helpful discussions of funding outreach efforts and establishing an 

effort to promote institutional purchasing and loan-ready projects. 

 

Staff met with the Regional Food Council co-chairs to discuss a new project around identifying 

the institutional demand of local food and identifying potential fundraising strategies.  

 

  Summit on Sustainability  

The Summit on Sustainability will be held on October 2nd. MORPC program staff have put 

together an outstanding conference that will highlight sustainability in four tracks: Policy, Land 

use Impacts, Energy & Environment, and Transportation. All 12 break-out sessions have been 

filled with speakers and sponsors. The luncheon program will focus on an energy-related 

panel discussion as well as the presentation of the Green Leader and Green Collaboration 

awards. Registration and sponsorship opportunities can be found at: www.morpc.org/summit. 

 

  National Safe Routes to School Conference 

Staff, together with its partners, is making great progress on planning the conference. 

Keynote speakers for all 3 days have already been confirmed. Nationwide Insurance has 

offered to be the program sponsor of the conference at $75,000. A Save-the-Date email has 

been sent out and a call for proposal will follow in late August. The program committee has 

identified the tracks for the break-out sessions: health, safety, policy, equity, partnerships, 

and impact/sustainability. They are now working on identifying workshops and tours that can 

be offered as part of the event. More information about the conference can be found at: 

www.saferoutesconference.org  

 

 



 

Memorandum 

 

TO: 

 

Community Advisory Committee 

Transportation Advisory Committee 

 

FROM: 

 

Thea Walsh, Director, and Nick Gill, Assistant Director 

Transportation Systems & Funding Department 

DATE: 

 

August 26, 2015 

SUBJECT: MORPC-Attributable Funding Out of Cycle Funding Request – Gemini 

Place Extension 

 

On July 29th, the Delaware County Engineer submitted an out-of-cycle funding 

application requesting $1,500,000 for the Gemini Place Extension project. 

Discussion between the project partners and MORPC staff in July led to this funding 

request after the final cost estimate for the project was higher than expected. Right-

of-way and construction costs for the project are $18.6 million, which includes the 

value of land donated by the developer ($5.1 million) for the project. The other 

funding partners include: ODOT ($3 million); Delaware County ($4 million); Columbus 

($4.5 million); and Westerville ($500,000). MORPC does not currently have funding 

in the project.  

 

MORPC has adopted Principles for Managing MORPC-Attributable Federal Funds 

(Principles) that outline the process for which MORPC provides federal transportation 

funding to projects. Principle 12 defines the process to consider out-of-cycle new 

funding requests like this one. In brief, the process is: 

1. The applicant completes the application form from last round and provides 

answers to the following questions: 

 Why is this request being made outside the normal funding cycle? 

 What is the urgency of the request that it cannot wait until the next 

normal funding cycle? 

 When did the applicant know the funds being requested would be 

needed? 

2. MORPC staff then: 

 Assigns the project to the appropriate project type category and 

checks if funding it would be outside the funding target range for that 

category.  

 Scores the new project relative to the projects in the category from 

the last round.  

 Assesses if the requested funding would impact other committed 

projects.  

 

The Delaware County Engineer has completed the application form and provided 

answers to the three questions summarized as follows (cover letter from the 

Delaware County Engineer attached): 



 

 

CAC, TAC and AFC 

August 26, 2015 

Page 2 

 

 

 Why is this request being made outside the normal funding cycle? 

During the last application cycle, in 2014, the cost estimate for the 

project was within the pledged funding commitments from the 

participating funding partners. 

 What is the urgency of the request that it cannot wait until the next 

normal funding cycle? ODOT is ready to advertise the project for bid, 

and the project going to bid at this time is required for IKEA to build 

its announced store at Polaris.  

 When did the applicant know the funds being requested would be 

needed? Early this summer when the final cost estimate developed 

by ODOT central office prior to advertising was completed. 

 

MORPC staff has also completed its portion of the process as follows: 

 The project falls into the Major Widening/New Roadway (Major) 

project type category. Currently, approximately 44% of our current 

commitments are for these types of projects. Even with providing the 

requested funding, the total percent will be less than the 50% 

maximum target for this category. 

 The evaluation score of the project would rank it second and in the 

range of projects that were funded during the last cycle. The 

following table shows the scores of the Gemini Place Extension 

project compared to the other projects in the Major category. The 

ranking within each goal and rationale as compared to the other 

Major projects are attached. 

Funded? Score Agency Project Description 

Yes 58.5 Pickerington Refugee Rd from Wheatfield Dr to Woodstock Ave, Major Widening 

n/a 58 Delaware County Gemini Place Extension, New Roadway 

Yes 55 Dublin Tuttle Crossing Blvd Extension and Avery Rd Widening 

Yes 53.5 Columbus N. Hamilton Road from Morse Rd to Chilmark Dr, Major Widening 

Partial 52 Columbus Sawmill Rd from I-270 to Hard Rd, Major Widening 

No 49 Hilliard Cosgray Road 

No 47 Columbus Refugee Road - Gender Road to Hines Road 

No 40 Delaware County DEL-CR10-2.91 South Old State Road Improvements, Phase 2 

No 26.5 Franklin County Winchester Pike (Shannon-Ebright to Bixby-Brice) 

 

 The funding request is relatively small and staff does not foresee 

that providing this funding will delay any projects with existing 

MORPC funding. 

 

 

 



 

 

CAC, TAC and AFC 

August 26, 2015 

Page 3 

 

 

Based on the applicant information and the scoring of the project relative to 

the applications considered during the last funding cycle, MORPC staff 

recommends that $1.5 million be provided for the Gemini Place Extension 

project. In addition to the information above, the request states that the 

MORPC funding is the last in and thus also the first out should the 

construction contract amount be less than the estimated cost.  

 

Please contact us if should you have any questions or disagree with the staff 

recommendation. Staff will be incorporating the funding in the Transportation 

Improvement Program (TIP) quarterly amendment during the September 

meeting cycle. Staff will highlight this out-of-cycle request during the 

amendment presentation. 

 

 

 

TW:NG:bsn 

 

Attachments 







R
O

A
D

 A

O
R

IO
N

 P
LA

C
E

W
O

R
TH

IN
G

TO
N

 R
O

A
D

POLARIS PARKWAY

W
ORTH

IN
GTO

N R
OAD

GEMINI PLACE EXTENSION

R
O

A
D

 B

POW
ELL ROAD

NP LIMITED
COLUMBUS, OHIO

DESCRIPTIONDATENO

SUBMITTAL RECORD

DESCRIPTIONDATENO

REVISION  RECORD

8 234567

A

B

C

D

E

F

G

1

8 234567 1

H

A

B

C

D

E

F

G

HH

8740 Orion Place, Suite 100  -  Columbus, OH  43240
Ph: 614.540.6633 · 888.598.6808 · Fax: 614.540.6638

www.cecinc.com

DATE: DWG SCALE:

DRAWN BY: CHECKED BY: APPROVED BY:

PROJECT NO:

SHEET OF

DRAWING NO.:

GEMINI EXTENSION LANE EXHIBIT

132-9681"=100'SEPTEMBER 2014
TJH TJV DRAFT

1 1

1

NORTH

REFERENCE

ROADS A & B
36' SECTION (NON-RESIDENTIAL) COMBINATION CURB

& GUTTER TYPE SPECIAL 8" - COC STD DWG 2116

DRAFT



Major Widening/New Roadway

Co Score

Map ID Project Title En EO We

SN NRCo_Rationale

Total Score

Collaboration Summary - DRAFT

8

109 Gemini Place Extension 

0 6 6

6 4

The concept for this project has been in plans for many years. The interchange upgrade to add Gemini 
Parkway included a stub for this roadway. Three local jurisdictions and ODOT have been cooperatively 
working to plan and design the roadway along with the developer in the area. The request is 
relalatively modest amount with funding being provided by 4 government entities and some funding 
and significant right-of-way donation by the developer. The request is only a result of an increase in the 
final estimate before advertising for bids. As a result the MORPC money is the last in and will be the 
first out should the construction award be lower than the estimate.

58.0

7

102 Tuttle Crossing Blvd Extension and Avery Rd Widening

2 6 5

5 6

The project request is for approximately 50% of the project cost. Other funding is to be from Dublin 
and land owners in the area obtained through the rezoning and development process (1 draft 
agreement in place). The project implements a long standing plan for the transportation system in that 
area benefiting Dublin and Columbus. It is included in the MTP. Multiple entities are supports of the 
project.

55.0

6

103 Refugee Rd from Wheatfield Dr to Woodstock Ave, Major Widening

2 7 6

6 4

The request is for 50% of the funding and a moderately sized request. The project has received ODOT 
safety funding. Two sources of private funding are also contributing to the project as well as donating 
ROW.

58.5

5

104 Sawmill Rd from I-270 to Hard Rd, Major Widening

0 4 7

7 3

The project is requesting the maximum 80% and is a moderately large request. Although no other 
funding sources for this particular project, it complements the ODOT funded project that is providing 
an additional lane northbound in the same project limits. The project is on the MTP.

52.0

5

106 N. Hamilton Rd from Morse Rd to Menerey Ln/Preserve Blvd, Major Widening

0 6 6

8 2

The project request is for the maximum 80% and it is a large dollar amount. The project does 
implement long planned improvements in the corridor that benefit Columbus and Gahanna. Gahanna 
has committed a portion of matching funds. Other projects in the area include the Hamilton Road S-
Curve and the relocation and improvement of Dublin-Granville and Hamilton, among others. Columbus 
has identified their intent to pursue safety funds which could offset some of the requested funding. It is 
ranked third of the twelve Columbus applications.

53.5

4

108 Cosgray Rd Extension from Scioto Darby Rd to Alton Darby Creek Rd, New Rdway

2 5 5

5 7

The request is for the maximum 80% federal funding. It is moderately large request. There is multiple 
entities supporting the project although only Hilliard is providing the local funding. The project is in the 
MTP.

49.0

3

101 Refugee Rd from Gender Rd to Hines Rd, Major Widening

0 3 8

4 3

The request is for the maximum 80% and it is a moderately sized request. No other local funding 
partners and current letters of support. Project is not specifically listed in the MTP, although a large 
component of the project occurrs at an intersection which is included by line item in the MTP.

47.0

2

105 Winchester Pk from Shannon Rd/Ebright Rd to Bixby Rd/Brice Rd, Major Widening

0 1 4

4 3

The request is for the maximum 80% and is a moderately large project. There are no other funding 
partners and no letters of support at this time. It is NOT on the MTP.

26.5

Thursday, August 20, 2015 Page 2 of 7



Major Widening/New Roadway

Co Score

Map ID Project Title En EO We

SN NRCo_Rationale

Total Score

Collaboration Summary - DRAFT

2

107 South Old State Rd from Orange Rd to Lewis Center Rd, Major Widening

1 3 6

5 3

The request is for the maximum 80% and is a large request. No additional information on other funding 
partners or support was provided. It is included in the MTP and continuation of a currently funded 
project to the south.

40.0

Thursday, August 20, 2015 Page 3 of 7



Major Widening/New Roadway

EO Score

Map ID Project Title En Co We

SN NREO_Rationale

Total Score

Economic Opportunity Summary - DRAFT

7

103 Refugee Rd from Wheatfield Dr to Woodstock Ave, Major Widening

2 6 6

6 4

Moderate, growing ADTs.  Improve development by improving LOS from F to C and managing access.  
Immediately adjacent to over 140 acres of greenfields with access to utilities, zoned residential, but 
expected to accommodate some commercial/office.  High vacancies in commercial properties could be 
reduced.  Investments of over $85 million over the last three years.  SR-256 project investing $7m.  TIF 
agreement for hospital property.  Medical campus expected to employ 180 FTE by 2015, including 
some relocated jobs.  Potential for future full hospital with 1250-1500 employees; no documented 
commitments.

58.5

6

102 Tuttle Crossing Blvd Extension and Avery Rd Widening

2 7 5

5 6

ADT from 2003-06 is in the 5000-7000 range.  Peak hour volumes projected for 2030 are 1500-2000.  
Maps show 453 acres of agricultural and low intensity usage that would be improved for development.  
Appropriate relationship to context.  Water and sewer to be added.  Potential for private funding 
sources.  Two TIFs to support.  Adjacent road and water projects in CIP.  Potential for 1,250 jobs; no 
documented commitments.

55.0

6

106 N. Hamilton Rd from Morse Rd to Menerey Ln/Preserve Blvd, Major Widening

0 5 6

8 2

Fairly high ADT (low 20s) with moderate growth expected.  Utilities in place.  Supports COTA's current 
expansion to include 2 additional bus routes to the area (no documentation, not in TSR).  Supports 
future "S curve" project at offset.  Future investment and jobs expected: currently, developers are 
propsing a 350-acre mixed-use development including over 1000 residential units; 1,000,000 sq. ft. of 
retail space; 100,000 sq. ft. of hospitality space; and 700,000 sq. ft. of commercial office space. This 
development is expected to result in the creation of 2000 commercial office jobs (average hourly wage 
of $29) and 1000 retail jobs (average hourly wage of $19).

53.5

6

109 Gemini Place Extension 

0 8 6

6 4

The roadway is necessary for the redevelopment of the ampitheater site (approximately 90 acres). 
Significant private investment has been made and will be made (IKEA among others) in the project 
area. Congestion is hampering the ability of the area east of I-71 to attract employers. There has also 
been talks that the congestion may result in some existing employers to relocate. This is one project 
out os several funded projects to allow for continued development/redevelopment of the area.

58.0

5

108 Cosgray Rd Extension from Scioto Darby Rd to Alton Darby Creek Rd, New Rdway

2 4 5

5 7

Moderate ADT (15,000) with growth antiicipated to 25,000.  Low truck traffic.  Directly serves 127 acres 
of new development.  Utilities need to be provided by developer.  Trail extension and nearby road 
improvements to be finished prior to project construction.  Plan to use TIF and CRA revenues.  
Anticipate $86m of investment after completion.

49.0

4

104 Sawmill Rd from I-270 to Hard Rd, Major Widening

0 5 7

7 3

High ADT with moderate growth.  Six properties recently re/developed; some economic potential, 
nothing specific.

52.0

3

101 Refugee Rd from Gender Rd to Hines Rd, Major Widening

0 3 8

4 3

Moderate, growing ADTs.  Some recent residential construction in the area.  There are additional 
undeveloped parcels remaining to the east of the intersection.

47.0

3

107 South Old State Rd from Orange Rd to Lewis Center Rd, Major Widening

1 2 6

5 3

Moderate projected ADT (18,400).  Claims over 800 acres of greenfield and infill development will be 
served.

40.0

Friday, August 14, 2015 Page 2 of 7



Major Widening/New Roadway

EO Score

Map ID Project Title En Co We

SN NREO_Rationale

Total Score

Economic Opportunity Summary - DRAFT

1

105 Winchester Pk from Shannon Rd/Ebright Rd to Bixby Rd/Brice Rd, Major Widening

0 2 4

4 3

Low ADT.  Growth anticipated with 33/Bixby interchange; no specifics.

26.5

Friday, August 14, 2015 Page 3 of 7



Major Widening/New Roadway

En Score

Map ID Project Title Co EO We

SN NREn_Rationale

Total Score

Energy Summary-DRAFT

2

102 Tuttle Crossing Blvd Extension and Avery Rd Widening

7 6 5

5 6

This project will construct roundabouts at three intersections.  These roundabouts will save energy by 
not having signals that use electricity.

55.0

2

103 Refugee Rd from Wheatfield Dr to Woodstock Ave, Major Widening

6 7 6

6 4

This project will construct a roundabout at one intersection, saving energy by not having signals that 
use electricity. The project will also include LED intersection lighting at all three traffic controlled 
intersections.

58.5

2

108 Cosgray Rd Extension from Scioto Darby Rd to Alton Darby Creek Rd, New Rdway

4 5 5

5 7

The Cosgray Road project includes LED lighting which will save energy and money on street lighting.  
Additionally, the project incorporates two roundabouts.

49.0

1

107 South Old State Rd from Orange Rd to Lewis Center Rd, Major Widening

2 3 6

5 3

LED lighting will be considered for street lights installed at crosswalks located at signalized intersections.

40.0

0

101 Refugee Rd from Gender Rd to Hines Rd, Major Widening

3 3 8

4 3

No information on non-traffic energy impacts provided.

47.0

0

104 Sawmill Rd from I-270 to Hard Rd, Major Widening

5 4 7

7 3

No information on non-traffic energy impacts provided.

52.0

0

105 Winchester Pk from Shannon Rd/Ebright Rd to Bixby Rd/Brice Rd, Major Widening

2 1 4

4 3

No information on non-traffic energy impacts provided.

26.5

0

106 N. Hamilton Rd from Morse Rd to Menerey Ln/Preserve Blvd, Major Widening

5 6 6

8 2

No information on non-traffic energy impacts provided.

53.5

0

109 Gemini Place Extension 

8 6 6

6 4

No information on non-traffic energy impacts provided.

58.0

Friday, August 14, 2015 Page 2 of 6



Major Widening/New Roadway

NR Score

Map ID Project Title En Co EO

SN WeNR_Rationale

Total Score

Natural Resources Summary-DRAFT

7

108 Cosgray Rd Extension from Scioto Darby Rd to Alton Darby Creek Rd, New Rdway

2 4 5

5 5

The project area is part of the Big Darby watershed and subject to the Big Darby Accord. In the course 
of this project, the City of Hilliard is restoring Clover Groff Ditch and installing a variety of stormwater 
management systems (bioswales and rain gardens, etc.) that are projected to result in a net benefit to 
habitats in the area. These stormwater management systems are projected to exceed the stormwater 
runoff and drainage requirements of both Hilliard and the Big Darby Accord. There is a net increase of 
emissions from this project.

49.0

6

102 Tuttle Crossing Blvd Extension and Avery Rd Widening

2 7 6

5 5

This is the only project in the "Major Widening/New Roadway" category to have a net reduction in 
emissions. The City of Dublin also plans to add two water quality basins, in addition to street trees and 
landscaping.

55.0

4

103 Refugee Rd from Wheatfield Dr to Woodstock Ave, Major Widening

2 6 7

6 6

There are no special efforts made on behalf of sensitive lands or water runoff near the project area. 
The City of Pickerington will replace all trees disturbed during the course of the project and hopes to 
add street trees along the corridor with their own funds. There is a net increase of emissions.

58.5

4

109 Gemini Place Extension 

0 8 6

6 6

There are no special efforts made on behalf of sensitive lands, water runoff, or vegetation and habitat 
near the project area. There is a decrease of emissions.

58.0

3

101 Refugee Rd from Gender Rd to Hines Rd, Major Widening

0 3 3

4 8

There are no special efforts made on behalf of sensitive lands, water runoff, or vegetation and habitat 
near the project area. There is a net increase of emissions.

47.0

3

104 Sawmill Rd from I-270 to Hard Rd, Major Widening

0 5 4

7 7

There are no special efforts made on behalf of sensitive lands, water runoff, or vegetation and habitat 
near the project area. There is a net increase of emissions.

52.0

3

105 Winchester Pk from Shannon Rd/Ebright Rd to Bixby Rd/Brice Rd, Major Widening

0 2 1

4 4

There are no special efforts made on behalf of sensitive lands, water runoff, or vegetation and habitat 
near the project area. There is a net increase of emissions.

26.5

3

107 South Old State Rd from Orange Rd to Lewis Center Rd, Major Widening

1 2 3

5 6

There are no special efforts made on behalf of sensitive lands, water runoff, or vegetation and habitat 
near the project area. There is a net increase of emissions.

40.0

2

106 N. Hamilton Rd from Morse Rd to Menerey Ln/Preserve Blvd, Major Widening

0 5 6

8 6

Regarding sensitive lands, two wetlands will be filled as a result of this project (with mitigation efforts 
to take place). There are no special efforts made on behalf of water runoff or vegetation and habitat 
near the project area. There is a net increase of emissions.

53.5

Friday, August 14, 2015 Page 2 of 6



Major Widening/New Roadway

SN Score

Map ID Project Title En Co We

EO NRSN_Rationale

Total Score

Sustainable Neighborhoods Summary-DRAFT

8

106 N. Hamilton Rd from Morse Rd to Menerey Ln/Preserve Blvd, Major Widening

0 5 6

6 2

The project provides benefits to existing fixed-route transit and the 2035 projected origin/destination 
density is highest. Its environmental justice population percentage is in the lower end of the category.

53.5

7

104 Sawmill Rd from I-270 to Hard Rd, Major Widening

0 5 7

4 3

The project provides benefits to existing fixed-route transit with the bike and ped facilities closer to 
more dense resiential areas than the other projects in the category. Both the current and projected 
origin/destination densities are both high. Its environmental justice population percentage is among 
higher in category.

52.0

6

103 Refugee Rd from Wheatfield Dr to Woodstock Ave, Major Widening

2 6 6

7 4

Its environmental justice population percentage is in the middle of the category. It provides no benefit 
to existing fixed-route transit. Both the current and projected origin/destination densities are on the 
lower end. However, improvements to the transportation systems, including the bike and pedestrian 
systems, near the future location of the OhioHealth campus are significant.

58.5

6

109 Gemini Place Extension 

0 8 6

6 4

Its environmental justice population percentage is among lowest in  the category. It provides no benefit 
to existing fixed-route transit. The high end of origin/destination density is highest it low end is among 
the lowest. It will provide pedestrian and bicycle connections in an area lacking them. This project 
along with other funded projects will make for a fairly complete bike and pedestrian system east of I-71.

58.0

5

102 Tuttle Crossing Blvd Extension and Avery Rd Widening

2 7 5

6 6

This project adds a new link to the bike and pedestrian systems. Its environmental justice population 
percentage is among lowest in the category. It provides no benefit to existing fixed-route transit. Both 
the current and projected origin/destination densities are in the middle of the category.

55.0

5

107 South Old State Rd from Orange Rd to Lewis Center Rd, Major Widening

1 2 6

3 3

Its environmental justice population percentage is among lowest in  the category. It provides no benefit 
to existing fixed-route transit. Though the current origin/destination density is high, there are 3 
residential relocations expected, while no other project in the categroy has any expected 
displacements.

40.0

5

108 Cosgray Rd Extension from Scioto Darby Rd to Alton Darby Creek Rd, New Rdway

2 4 5

5 7

Its environmental justice population percentage is lowest in the category. It provides no benefit to 
existing fixed-route transit. Though the project is expected to have a lowest  origin/destination density 
in both 2010 and 2035. This project does provide bike and pedestrian connections to a local park and 
senior center in addition to setting up a future regional route to Prairie Oaks Metro Park.

49.0

4

101 Refugee Rd from Gender Rd to Hines Rd, Major Widening

0 3 8

3 3

Its environmental justice population percentage is in the middle of the category. It provides no benefit 
to existing fixed-route transit. Both the current and projected origin/destination densities are in the 
middle of the category.

47.0

4

105 Winchester Pk from Shannon Rd/Ebright Rd to Bixby Rd/Brice Rd, Major Widening

0 2 4

1 3

It provides no benefit to existing fixed-route transit. Ita environmental justice population Is near the 
top of the category. Current origin/destination density is among the lowest but has the biggest change 
in density between 2010 and 2035.

26.5

Thursday, August 20, 2015 Page 2 of 6



Major Widening/New Roadway

We Score

Map ID Project Title En Co EO

SN NRWe_Rationale

Total Score

Health Safety and Welfare Summary-DRAFT

8

101 Refugee Rd from Gender Rd to Hines Rd, Major Widening

0 3 3

4 3
This project is estimated to have one of the highest reduction in congested VMT and reduction in travel 
delay. It has the second worst crash rating.

47.0

7

104 Sawmill Rd from I-270 to Hard Rd, Major Widening

0 5 4

7 3
The reduction in percent of congested VMT is high in a very congested corridor. It is the worst in terms 
of crash data.

52.0

6

103 Refugee Rd from Wheatfield Dr to Woodstock Ave, Major Widening

2 6 7

6 4
One of the higher projects in reducing congested VMT. Middle of the pack in terms of our crash data. 
However it's the city's second highest priority for safety improvements and is supported by receiving 
ODOT safety funds. Among lowest of PCR info.

58.5

6

106 N. Hamilton Rd from Morse Rd to Menerey Ln/Preserve Blvd, Major Widening

0 5 6

8 2
Lower half in terms of congested VMT reduction and travel delay savings. It is one of the worst in terms 
of crash data.

53.5

6

107 South Old State Rd from Orange Rd to Lewis Center Rd, Major Widening

1 2 3

5 3
Congestion in the project area is not as great as some of the projects although this project does address 
all of the congestion in the immediate project corridor. It is middle of the pack in terms of crash data.

40.0

6

109 Gemini Place Extension 

0 8 6

6 4
Middle of the pack in terms of corridor congestion relief in the vicinity. However, congestion in this 
area is among the highest of any areas for this round of applicaitons. Higher travel delay savings. This, 
project will work in conjunction with other funded projects in the area to relieve congestion in the 
area. With being a new road the MORPC crash analysis process does not pick up crash info. However, 
congestion relief on nearby facilities will provide safety improvements expecially in helping to relieve 
NB I-71 ramp back ups.

58.0

5

102 Tuttle Crossing Blvd Extension and Avery Rd Widening

2 7 6

5 6
Because of a significant bottleneck in the system on Avery Road just south of the extension the 
modeling estimate of overall congestion in the 1 mile radius of the project limits shows an increase. 
However, users of the project segments do have one of the higher savings in travel delay. Along the 
existing Avery Road segment, the crash data shows it is not as bad as the other projects in the category.

55.0

5

108 Cosgray Rd Extension from Scioto Darby Rd to Alton Darby Creek Rd, New Rdway

2 4 5

5 7
Significant congestion relief in the vicinity although overall not as congested an area as other project 
locations. Higher travel delay savings. Applicant provided documentation on crash issues although 
being a new road, the MORPC crash analysis did not pick up crash info on sections of roads where the 
traffic relief is occurring.

49.0

4

105 Winchester Pk from Shannon Rd/Ebright Rd to Bixby Rd/Brice Rd, Major Widening

0 2 1

4 3
The project does not show significant congestion relief in the corridor. It is middle of the pack in terms 
of crash data.

26.5

Friday, August 14, 2015 Page 2 of 6



 

Memorandum 
 

TO: 

 

Community Advisory Committee 

Transportation Policy Committee 

 

FROM: 

 

Nick Gill, Assistant Director 

Transportation Systems & Funding  

 

DATE: 

 

August 26, 2015 

SUBJECT: Proposed Resolution T-15-15: "AMENDING THE STATE FISCAL 

YEAR (SFY) 2016-2019 TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT 

PROGRAM" 
 

Proposed Resolution T-15-15 will add or modify seven projects on the SFY 2016-

2019 Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) with commitments totaling over 

$75 million. These changes are necessary to enable these projects to advance using 

the identified sources of funding and to maintain fiscal constraint. This month the 

Ohio Department of Transportation (ODOT) will ask the Federal Highway 

Administration (FHWA) and the Federal Transit Administration (FTA) to amend the 

Statewide TIP to include these changes.  

 

Attachment 1 to the resolution provides a description of the funding and scope of 

each project, including a description of the bicycle and pedestrian components. The 

amendment includes two projects affecting MORPC-attributable funds: 

 

 Delaware County: Gemini Parkway Extension, to be implemented by ODOT 

(out-of-cycle request) 

 Pickerington: Center Road/Milnor Road/Meadows Boulevard intersection  

 

Below is an explanation of the proposed changes to the TIP.  

 

COTA (Central Ohio Transit Authority) requested the following additions and 

modifications to the TIP: 

 Modify funding for the Cleveland Avenue Bus Rapid Transit project 

 Remove the 2016 Paratransit Expansion project 

 Remove the Dublin Park and Ride project 

 Add the Cellular Connection for Buses project 

 Add the Strategic Land Purchases project 

 

DATABus (Delaware Area Transit Agency) requested the following additions and 

modifications to the TIP: 

 Add the DATABus Safety and Security project 

 Modify funding for the DATABus 2016 Bus Replacement project 



Resolution T-15-15 Memo 

Page 2 

 
 
 

 

Delaware County is requesting a new commitment of $1.5 million of MORPC-

attributable STP funds to cover an increase in the cost estimate for the Gemini 

Parkway extension. Columbus, ODOT, Westerville and NP Limited are also 

contributing funds to the project, with ODOT being the lead agency. MORPC 

received the request outside of its biennial project selection process. Following 

MORPC’s policies, Delaware County submitted a funding application, and MORPC 

staff evaluated it relative to other applications received last round. MORPC staff 

has recommended approval of the request. Please see the memo titled MORPC-

Attributable Funding Out-of-Cycle Funding Request – Gemini Place Extension in 

the meeting packet for additional information. 

 

Pickerington requested an increase in funding for right-of-way activities for the 

Center Road/Milnor Road/Meadows Boulevard intersection project. The cost 

estimate was revised because of unexpected utility relocation costs and higher 

costs for professional right-of-way services. MORPC-attributable funds for right-of-

way activities would increase from $180,000 to $318,700. The MORPC-

attributable funds for the entire project are still within the previous cap limit, but 

an amendment to the STIP is required because the RW phase costs have 

increased significantly. 

 

NTG:NJV:bsn 

 

Attachments: 

 Project Map 

 Proposed Resolution T-15-15 

 



!
!
!

!
!

!

!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!

!

!!

!

!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!

!
!
!
!

!!

!

#*

DELAWARE

DELAWARE

FA
IRF

IEL
D

LIC
KIN

G
FR

AN
KL

IN

DELAWARE

FRANKLIN

§̈¦270

§̈¦71

§̈¦670

§̈¦71

§̈¦70

£¤42

£¤23

£¤33

£¤23

£¤23

£¤40£¤40

£¤23

£¤62

£¤33

£¤62

£¤36

£¤40

£¤36

£¤62

£¤42
¬«656

¬«315

¬«317

¬«315

¬«229

¬«521

¬«665

¬«37

¬«3

¬«750

¬«710

¬«37

¬«256

¬«16

¬«3

¬«204

¬«161

¬«674

¬«161

¬«310

¬«104

¬«317

¬«203

¬«605

¬«745

¬«61

¬«257

WOODTOWN RD

TRE NTON RD

BRYDEN RD

MAIN ST

MINK STREET RD

S S
EC

TIO
N 

LIN
E R

D

MOCK RD

SIN
CL

AIR
 RD

TAYLOR RD

FRANK RD

HOR SE S HO E RD

N 
HA

MI
LT

ON
 R

D
HA

MI
LT

ON
 R

D

POLARIS PKWY

LEWIS CENTER RD

W HENDERSON RD

HOLTON RD

HUBBARD RD

E COLLEGE AVE

PA
RS

ON
S A

VE

CHESHIRE RD

GLICK RD

LIB
ER

T Y
R D

BRAND RD

SNOUFFER RD

DARBYCREEKDR

SULLIVANT AVE

MI
LN

OR
 RD

 N
W

CLARK STATE RD

REFUGEE RD

W LANE AVE

COSGRAY RD
WILLIAMS RD

FISHINGER RD

WEST CASE RD

MOOBERRY ST

HARD RD

VAUSE RD

W ALTON PKWY

WA
TK

IN
S R

D 
SW

KA
RL

 R
D

SHIER-RINGS RD

RENNER RD

E DUBLIN-GRANVILLE RD

HOME RD

KING AVE

HAVENS CORNERS RD

EASTON WAY

KIT
ZM

I LL
ER

R D

WHITE RD

POR T R
D

N O
E

BI
X B

YR
D

W WATERLOO ST

ROWE RD

SUNBURY R
D

CENTRAL COLLEGE RD

STRINGTOWN RD

COOPER RD

GA
NT

ZR
D

RADNOR RD

ROHR RD

FREDR ICKS RD

PIKE ST SW

HOSKINS RD

CENTERBURG

RD

WINCHESTER RD NW

NO
RT

ON
RD

W MAIN ST

S
WA

GG
ON

ER
RD

VALLEYVIEW DR

MA
IZE

 RD

LEE
 RD

S OL
D 3C

H W
Y

E WHITTIER ST

WINCHESTER PIKE

DU BLIN
RD

EAKIN RD

HARRIO TT RD

E POWELL RD

BOWTOWN
RD

CHATTERTON RD

E LIVINGSTON AVE

AGLER RD

HILLIARD
ROMERD

ALKIRE RD

E FULTON ST

FISHER RD

COUN
TY

R O
AD

60
5

BRIGGS RD

HOME RD

GROVE CITY RD

OPOSSUM RUN RD

H AY DEN RUN RD

EB
RI

GH
T R

D

W MOUND ST

HYATTS RD

J O
YC

E A
VE

S H
O O

KR

D

REFUGEE RD

MCCUTCHEON RD

ORDERS RD

E HUDSON ST

BETHEL RD

TU
S S

IC
S T

RE
ET

R D

BIG RUN SOUTH RD

E 5TH AVE

STI MMEL RD
THURMAN AVE

MCCOY RD

E 11TH AVE

RENSCH RD

MORSE RD

GE
OR

GE
SV

IL L
ER

D

MCKINLEY AVE

S FRONT ST
E WEBER RD

S Y
EA

RL
IN

G 
RD

WALNUT ST

BU RNT P OND
RD

CLIME RD

FERRIS RD

CORR RD

LO
CK

BO
UR

NE
 R

D

B R
EN

TN
E L

LA
VE

VANS VALLEY RD

L ONG RDGROVEPORTR D

CEMETERY RD

LANCASTER
AVE

INNIS RD

LIN
W O

RT

H
RD

GEMINI PL

WATKINS RD

PEACHBLOW RD

FREBIS AVE

LEONARDSBURG RDM AIN RD

CONCORD RD

DAVIDSON RD

OLIV E GREEN RD

SU
MM

IT 
RD

 SW

HARRISBURG LONDON RD

RO
ME

 CO
RN

ER
S R

D

PITTSBURGH DR

ROSEHILLRD

SCIOTO DARBY CREEK RD

CU
R T

IS
R D

LUKENS RD

HALL RD

KILBOURNE RD

PANHANDL E
RD

CO
ND

IT 
RD

DAVID RD

DEMPSEY RD

CA
RR

OL
L-N

OR
TH

ER
N 

RD
 N

W

MILLS RD HARTFORD RD

MORSE RD

B ERLIN STATION RD

SMI T HS MILL RD

SMOTHERS RD
COUNTY LINE RD

GROVEPORT RD

RO
CK

M I
LL R

D N W

EM
ER

AL
D

PK

WY

ZUBER RD

HART RD

RINGS RD

MARCY RD NW

DILDINE RDRIVER RD

E WAL NUT ST

BR IN DLE RD

FONTANELLE RD

HAYES RD

FANCHER RD

DAVIS RD

GARDNER RD

N
TH

RE
EB

'S
&

K
R D

N 
CO

UN
TY

 LI
NE

 RD

N OLD3C HWY

LITHOPOLIS RD

O RE
GO

N
RD

TH
OM

AS
 R

D

ELDER RD

N GALENA RD

COUNTY HOME RD

ROBERTS RD

ST
AH

L R
D

JONES
RD

LONDON LANCASTER RD

BEATTY RD

KROPP RD
HOUCHARD RD

HEADLEYS MILLRD
SW

STEAMTOWN RD

TAWAY RD

ST
EIT

Z R
D

PATTERS ON RD

HU
N T

LE
Y

RD
S O

LD
 ST

AT
E R

D

ALT
ON

RD

N
HI GH

ST

S AWMILL
P KWY

ALT ON
&

DARBY CREEK
RD

HA
RL

EM
RD

COLE
RD

ST
EL

ZE
R R

D

FRAN TZ
R D

AMITY RD

KENNY
RD

ALUM
CRE EK DR

N HAGUE AVE

HO
LT

 RD

O LENTANGY RIVER
RD

AM
AN

DA
-N

OR
TH

ER
N 

RD
 N

W

AV
ER

YR
D

BA
BB

ITT
 R

D

MI
NK

ST
SW

G O
DO

W N
RD

N WILSON RD

NORTHWEST
BLV D

RE
ED

 R
D

WOR
TH

ING
TO

N RD

CHE RRY

BOTTOM
RD

PIC
KE

RI
NG

TO
N

R D
NW

LONDONRD

AFRICA RD

DU
NH A

M
RD

LA
CK

EY
 O

LD
 ST

AT
E R

D

TRE
MONT R

D
GR

A N
D V

IE W
AV

E

N 
CA

SS
AD

Y A
VE

TR
OY

 RD

OSTRANDER RD

POST RD

WARRENSBURG RD
DE

MO
RE

ST
RD

NEIL AVE

L EA P R D

GA
L L

OW
AY

RD

S
UN

BU
RY

RD

FLI
NT

 RD

SA
N C

U S
B L

VD

S GAL ENARD

MI
LL

ER
-PA

UL
RD

AL UM
CRE EK DR

WALKER RD

BR
ICE

 R
D

SA
WM

ILL
 R

D

A VE RY RD

ST
YG

LE
R R

D 
N

GE
ND

ER
 R

D

SS
PR

IN
G

RD

PON TIUS
RD

N
OL

D S
TA

TE
RD

BO
WE

N 
RD

SCHLEPPI R D

LEPPERT RD

ELLIOTTRD

RED
BA

NK
RD

MC
NA

UG
HT

EN
 R

D

LOTT
RD

ASHLEY
RD

LAW
RE

N C
E

RD

N 
WA

GG
ON

ER
 RD

CE
DA

R 
HI

LL
 R

D 
NW

CA
R T

ER
'S

CO
RN

E R
RD

B IG
GE

RT
RD

RIC
HA

RD
SO

N 
RD

PENN RD

YO
RK

 RD
 SW

GALENA

OSTRANDER

ASHLEY

GROVEPORT

GAHANNA

BEXLEY

WHITEHALL

RIVERLEA

URBANCREST

VALLEYVIEW

OBETZ

UPPER
ARLINGTON

GRANDVIEW
HEIGHTS

BRICE

MINERVA
PARK

PATASKALA

HILLIARD

PICKERINGTON

CANAL
WINCHESTER

LITHOPOLIS

REYNOLDSBURG

SHAWNEE
HILLS

LOCKBOURNE
HARRISBURG

DUBLIN

WORTHINGTON

WESTERVILLE

NEW
ALBANY

GROVE
CITY

COLUMBUS

POWELL

DELAWARE

SUNBURY

26
34

2859

1707
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
! !

!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!

!!!!!!!

S 3RD ST

E GOODALE ST

MT VERNONAVE

PA
RK

 ST

E MAIN STS FRONT ST

GOODALE BLVD N HIGH ST

N
SO

UD
ER

AV
E

BRYDEN RD
W GAY ST

SA
IN

T C
LA

IR 
AV

E

MOU
ND

ST

PLATO DR

OAK ST

MCDOWELL ST

S CYPRESS AVE

SULLIVANT AVE

E GAY ST

E TOWN ST
E RICH ST

VINE ST
W GOODALE ST

N FRONT ST
S 2ND ST

S GRUBB ST

W STATE ST

E LONG ST
LONG ST

DE
NN

ISO
N 

AV
E

E SPRING ST

MCKINLEY AVE

THOMAS AVE

S HIGH ST

W FULTON ST
E FULTON ST£¤62

£¤33

£¤23
£¤40

§̈¦71

§̈¦70

§̈¦670

2634

DOWNTOWN   COLUMBUS

Mid-Ohio  Regio n a l Pla n n in g Co m m issio n
111 Liberty Street

Co lum bus, Ohio  43215
614.228.2663
August 2015

Plea se check www.m o rpc.o rg fo r
upda tes to  this m a p a n d pro ject listin g.

SFY 2016-2019
Tra n spo rta tio n  Im pro vem en t Pro gra m

Resolution T-15-15
Amendment to the TIP
Project Location Map

±
0 3 6

Miles

The information shown on this map is compiled from various
sources available to us which we believe to be reliable.

n:\arcgis\core\tip\2016_2019\tip amndmt t-15-15.mxd aug15

This m a p prepa red in
co o pera tio n  with the
U.S. Depa rtm en t o f

Tra n spo rta tio n ’s Federa l
Highwa y Adm in istra tio n
a n d Federa l Tra n sit

Adm in istra tio n , the Ohio
Depa rtm en t o f

Tra n spo rta tio n ,  a n d
lo ca l co m m un ities.

Major Widening
New Road

New Interchange
Minor Widening/Safety Improvement

Interchange Modification
Intersection Modification

Maintenance/Resurfacing
Bridge Repair/Replacement

Traffic Signal Upgrade
Streetscape/Study/Other
Bikeway/Sidewalk/Transit
Streetscape/Study/Other

MORPC Project Identification

Construction Phase
FY 2016 - 2019

Construction Phase
after FY 2019

ââ ââ ââ ââ ââ ââ ââ ââ

#*

!(

!(
#*

!(

")

ââ ââ ââ ââ ââ ââ ââ ââ

!(

ââ ââ ââ ââ ââ ââ ââ ââ

(Construction not part of TIP)

")

")

")

ââ ââ ââ ââ ââ ââ

Planning Area

100 100100 100 100 100100 100

#*#*



RESOLUTION T-15-15 

 

“AMENDING THE STATE FISCAL YEAR (SFY) 2016-2019 TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT 

PROGRAM” 

 

WHEREAS, the Transportation Policy Committee of the Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission 

(MORPC) adopted the SFY 2016-2019 Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) by Resolution  

T-12-15; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Central Ohio Transit Authority has requested the addition and modification of projects 

on the 2016-2019 TIP as shown in Attachment 1; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Delaware Area Transit Agency has requested the addition and modification of projects 

on the 2016-2019 TIP as shown in Attachment 1; and 

 

WHEREAS, Delaware County and the Ohio Department of Transportation (ODOT) have requested the 

modification of one project, to be implemented by ODOT, on the 2016-2019 TIP as shown in 

Attachment 1; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Pickerington has requested the modification of one project on the 2016-2019 

TIP as shown in Attachment 1; and 

 

WHEREAS, the projects are consistent with the transportation policies, plans, and programs, 

including the most recent Metropolitan Transportation Plan adopted by the Transportation Policy 

Committee; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Community Advisory Committee at its meeting on August 31, 2015, and the 

Transportation Advisory Committee at its meeting on September 2, 2015, recommended approval of 

this resolution to the Transportation Policy Committee; now therefore 

 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TRANSPORTATION POLICY COMMITTEE OF THE MID-OHIO REGIONAL 

PLANNING COMMISSION: 

 

Section 1. That the MORPC SFY 2016-2019 TIP be amended to include the project information 

as shown in Attachment 1. 

 

Section 2. That it affirms that the fiscal balance of the SFY 2016-2019 TIP is maintained. 

 

Section 3. That the determination of conformity between the TIP and the State Implementation 

Plan (SIP) is hereby reaffirmed, as the projects are exempt from conformity 

requirements or have been included in the most recent air quality conformity 

approval. 

 

Section 4. That this resolution will be transmitted to ODOT and all local agencies listed as 

sponsoring agencies in Attachment 1 for appropriate action. 

 



Resolution T-15-15 

Page 2 

 

 

 

Section 5. That the Transportation Policy Committee finds and determines that all formal 

deliberations and actions of this committee concerning and relating to the adoption 

of this resolution were taken in open meetings of this committee.  

 

 

 

_________________________________________ 

Eric S. Phillips, Chair 

MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

 

_________________________________________  

Date 

 

Prepared by: Transportation Staff 

 

Attachment: 

 Amended Project Information for the SFY 2016-2019 TIP 



Resolution T-15-15

Attachment 1 - Amended Project Information

Agency: COTA PID: 101565 TIP ID: 3093 MTP ID:  773

Project Type(s): Transit Activity Air Quality: Exempt

Co-Route-Sec: FRA-COTA Cellular Connection for Buses- Length (mi.):

Other $2,500,000Local2016

State Fiscal Year Phase Source Amount

COTA Cellular Connection for Buses, Transit Activity, includes Wi-Fi.

Not applicable. 

Not applicable. 

Description:

Bike Components:

Ped Components:

Total: $2,500,000

Agency: COTA PID: 101566 TIP ID: 3094 MTP ID:  773

Project Type(s): Transit Activity Air Quality: Exempt

Co-Route-Sec: FRA-COTA Strategic Land Purchases- Length (mi.):

Right-of-Way $4,060,000Local2016

State Fiscal Year Phase Source Amount

COTA Strategic Land Purchases, Transit Activity, locations not yet specified.

Not applicable. 

Not applicable. 

Description:

Bike Components:

Ped Components:

Total: $4,060,000

Wednesday, August 26, 2015 Page 1 of 4

Funds in FYs prior to 2016 are not included in this report nor in the 2016-2019 Transportation Improvement Program.



Resolution T-15-15

Attachment 1 - Amended Project Information

Agency: COTA PID: 94357 TIP ID: 2634 MTP ID:  12

Project Type(s): Transit Expansion Capital Air Quality: System Analyzed

Co-Route-Sec: FRA-COTA Cleveland Ave BRT- Length (mi.): 15

Purchase $6,697,420SEC 53092016

State Fiscal Year Phase Source Amount

COTA Cleveland Ave BRT, Transit Expansion Capital, CMAX Bus Rapid Transit on Cleveland Ave from Downtown to 

Polaris Parkway/Africa Rd - PE, NEPA ROW, Con including SR-161 Transit Center and Northern Lights P & R and 

purchase of 15 40’ CNG Buses

Modify existing facilities. 

Yes - Type to be determined. 

Description:

Bike Components:

Ped Components:

Purchase $1,674,355Local-Transit2016

Right-of-Way $3,124,277SEC 53092016

Right-of-Way $781,069Local2016

Construction $6,076,917SEC 53092016

Construction $937,896Local2016

Construction $581,334Local-Transit2016

Purchase $7,324,800SEC 53092017

Purchase $1,831,200Local-Transit2017

Construction $20,928,014SEC 53092017

Construction $5,232,003Local-Transit2017

Total: $55,189,285

Agency: DATA PID: 101564 TIP ID: 3091 MTP ID:  773

Project Type(s): Transit Activity Air Quality: Exempt

Co-Route-Sec: DEL-DATA Safety & Security- Length (mi.):

Other $8,000SEC 53072016

State Fiscal Year Phase Source Amount

DATA Safety & Security, Transit Activity, On-board M to M WiFi

Not applicable. 

Not applicable. 

Description:

Bike Components:

Ped Components:

Other $2,000Local2016

Total: $10,000

Wednesday, August 26, 2015 Page 2 of 4

Funds in FYs prior to 2016 are not included in this report nor in the 2016-2019 Transportation Improvement Program.



Resolution T-15-15

Attachment 1 - Amended Project Information

Agency: DATA PID: 95022 TIP ID: 2780 MTP ID:  773

Project Type(s): Transit Activity Air Quality: Exempt

Co-Route-Sec: DEL-DATA 2016 Bus Replacement- Length (mi.):

Other $116,000SEC 53072016

State Fiscal Year Phase Source Amount

DATA 2016 Bus Replacement, Transit Activity, LTN - Fiberglass Replacement (4).

No information provided.

No information provided.

Description:

Bike Components:

Ped Components:

Other $100,000SEC 53392016

Other $54,000Local-Transit2016

Total: $270,000

Agency: ODOT 6 PID: 95706 TIP ID: 2859 MTP ID:  1259

Project Type(s): New Roadway/Realignment Air Quality: System Analyzed

Co-Route-Sec: DEL-Gemini Pkwy-Extension Length (mi.): 0.4

Construction $3,000,000HSIP2016

State Fiscal Year Phase Source Amount

Gemini Pkwy extension from Orion Pl to Worthington Rd & Powell Rd, New Roadway, 5 lanes & Realignment, Connect 

Gemini Pkwy to Worthington Rd near the intersection of Powell Rd and Worthington Rd.  Realign the intersection of 

Powell and Worthington roads. 

Sidewalk on 1 side, multi-use path on 1 side. 5 ft wide sidewalks on south side of Gemini Pl and on west side of 

Worthington Rd between Polaris and Gemini Pl.  10 ft path on opposite side. 0.8 mi. added to ped network.

Multi-use path. 10 ft wide path on north side of Gemini Pl and on east side of Worthington Rd between Polaris Pkwy 

and Gemini Pl. 0.4 mi. added to bike network.

Description:

Bike Components:

Ped Components:

Construction $1,500,000STP-M2016 MORPC Funds - Cap Amount

Construction $7,000,000Local2016

Total: $11,500,000

Wednesday, August 26, 2015 Page 3 of 4

Funds in FYs prior to 2016 are not included in this report nor in the 2016-2019 Transportation Improvement Program.



Resolution T-15-15

Attachment 1 - Amended Project Information

Agency: Pickerington PID: 90384 TIP ID: 1707 MTP ID:  1088

Project Type(s): Intersection Modification Air Quality: Exempt

Co-Route-Sec: FAI-CR020-08.90 Length (mi.): 0.1

PE-Environmental Study $35,430STP-M2016 MORPC Funds

State Fiscal Year Phase Source Amount

Center St at Milnor Rd and Meadows Blvd, Intersection Modification, Full reconstruction of the intersection to a 

modern roundabout, increase sight distance, modify geometry, and allow all turning movements.

Sidewalk on 1 side. Connect sidewalk from Meadows Drive to Longview Street along Milnor Road. 0.1 mi. added to 

ped network.

Bicycle lanes. Climbing lanes proposed in the uphill direction. 0.1 mi. added to bike network.

Description:

Bike Components:

Ped Components:

PE-Environmental Study $8,858Local2016

Right-of-Way $166,400CMAQ-M2016 MORPC Funds - Cap Amount

Right-of-Way $36,870STP-M2016 MORPC Funds

Right-of-Way $50,818Local2016

Right-of-Way $80,000STP-M2017 MORPC Funds

Right-of-Way $20,000Local2017

Construction $400,160CMAQ-M2017 MORPC Funds - Cap Amount

Construction $770,100STP-M2017 MORPC Funds

Construction $346,065Local2017

Total: $1,914,700

Summary of Funding Sources

Source Description Total Amount

CMAQ-M Congestion Mitigation/Air Quality Improvement, Attributable to MORPC $566,560

HSIP Highway Safety Improvement Program $3,000,000

Local Local Public Agency $15,706,705

Local-Transit Local Public Transit Authority $9,372,892

SEC 5307 Transit Formula Block Grants $124,000

SEC 5309 Transit Discretionary Funds $44,151,428

SEC 5339 Transit Bus and Bus Facilities $100,000

STP-M Surface Transportation Program, Attributable to MORPC $2,422,400

Grand Total $75,443,985

Wednesday, August 26, 2015 Page 4 of 4

Funds in FYs prior to 2016 are not included in this report nor in the 2016-2019 Transportation Improvement Program.



 
 1 

RESOLUTION T-16-15 

 

ADOPTING THE 2015 TRANSPORTATION PUBLIC INVOLVEMENT PLAN 

 

WHEREAS, the Transportation Policy Committee of the Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission is 

designated as the metropolitan planning organization (MPO) by the governor, acting through the Ohio 

Department of Transportation (ODOT) and in cooperation with locally elected officials for Delaware 

and Franklin counties, Bloom and Violet townships in Fairfield County, New Albany, Pataskala and 

Etna Township in Licking County and Jerome Township in Union County; and 

 

WHEREAS, Moving Ahead for Progress in the 21st Century (MAP-21) and the most recent federal 

metropolitan planning regulations require the MPO to engage in a proactive process that provides 

the public with complete information, timely notice, full access to key decisions, and supports early 

and continuing involvement while developing plans, such as the Metropolitan Transportation Plan, 

and programs, such as the Transportation Improvement Program (TIP); and 

 

WHEREAS, the Transportation Public Involvement Plan (PIP), which was first prepared and endorsed 

in January 1995, outlines a continuous process that utilizes MORPC’s Transportation and 

Community Advisory Committees, special project committees, and general outreach and information 

dissemination; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Transportation PIP was amended in June 2000 to include the Central Ohio Transit 

Authority’s (COTA’s) planning and development of its program of transit projects; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Transportation PIP was amended in June 2005 to incorporate revisions to the 

Community Advisory Committee (CAC) bylaws, requirements of the new Americans with Disabilities 

(ADA) laws, and MORPC’s Title VI complaint process, among other changes; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Transportation PIP was amended in 2013 to incorporate the planning and 

development of Delaware Area Transit Agency (DataBus) program of transit projects, the 

Consultation process to involve local governments and other stakeholders, and updates to the 

approach to outreach and use of social media; and 

 

WHEREAS, the 2015 Transportation PIP is being amended to include Federal Transit 

Administration’s (FTA’s) Section 5307 annual Program of Projects in the public involvement process. 

The 2015 Transportation PIP was prepared and made available to the public for a 45-day review and 

comment period through public libraries, MORPC’s web site, and upon request with a notice of 

availability for review and comments having been sent to public agencies, neighborhood groups, civic 

associations, chambers of commerce, and representatives of those traditionally underserved by 

existing transportation systems; and  

 

WHEREAS, the Community Advisory Committee (CAC) at its August 31, 2015 meeting, and the 

Transportation Advisory Committee (TAC) at its September 2, 2015 meeting, recommended this 

action by the Transportation Policy Committee; now therefore 

 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE POLICY COMMITTEE OF THE MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION: 

 

Section 1. That it adopts the 2015 Transportation Public Involvement Plan dated September, 

2015. 



 
 2 

 

Resolution T-16-15 

Page 2 

 

Section 2. That it directs staff to implement, monitor and recommend updates to the Plan as 

needed. 

 

Section 3. That it directs staff to transmit this resolution to ODOT, COTA, DataBus and FTA. 

 

Section 4. That this committee finds and determines that all formal deliberations and actions of 

this committee concerning and relating to the adoption of this resolution were taken 

in open meetings of this committee. 

 

 

 

_________________________________________ 

Eric S. Phillips, Chair 

Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission 

 

 

________________________ 

Date 

 

Prepared by: Bernice Cage 

Public Information & Diversity Officer 

 

Attachment: 2015 Transportation Public Involvement Plan 

  



 
 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

2015 

TRANSPORTATION 

PUBLIC INVOLVEMENT 

PLAN 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SEPTEMBER 2015 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

 
 

BACKGROUND .................................................................................................................. 1 

MORPC AS THE MPO ....................................................................................................... 1 
INTENT OF THE TRANSPORTATION PUBLIC INVOLVEMENT PLAN............................ 2 

TRANSPORTATION PUBLIC INVOLVEMENT PLAN ....................................................... 3 

Tier 1: MPO’s Committee Structure.................................................................. 3 
Tier 2: Project-Specific Public Involvement ..................................................... 5 

Tier 3: Public Outreach/Information Dissemination...................................... 6 

CONSULTATION ................................................................................................................ 7 
METROPOLITAN TRANSPORTATION PLAN PUBLIC INVOLVEMENT PROCEDURES.7 

TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM (TIP) PUBLIC INVOLVEMENT 

PROCEDURES ................................................................................................................... 8 

ENVIRONMENTAL JUSTICE.............................................................................................. 9 

AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT .........................................................................10 

MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION NONDISCRIMINATION COMPLAINT 

PROCEDURES FOR PROGRAMS OR ACTIVITIES OF MORPC ...................................10 



 
 

TRANSPORTATION PUBLIC 

INVOLVEMENT PLAN 2015 

1 

 

 

 
 
 
 

MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 
 

The Public Involvement Plan specifies the procedures that the Mid-Ohio Regional Planning 

Commission will use when conducting its transportation planning process. The Plan also 

includes a section on Environmental Justice, the Americans with Disabilities Act and 

MORPC’s Nondiscrimination Complaint Procedures. 
 

 

BACKGROUND 
 

 
The Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission (MORPC) is a voluntary association 

of local governments in Central Ohio.  Franklin County and nearby counties as 

well as their cities, villages and townships are eligible for membership.  Elected 

and appointed officials sit on the Commission, which is the policy-making body of 

the organization. 

 
As a regional planning commission, MORPC has the flexibility and capability to be 

responsive to its members' needs.  MORPC assists with planning and 

implementing programs in areas of energy conservation, infrastructure, 

transportation, land use, economic prosperity, environmental protection and 

others. 

 
MORPC serves as a forum for state and local governments on regional issues and 

helps represent local communities' interests and needs at the state and federal 

levels. MORPC recognizes and encourages public and private cooperation on a 

regional basis and works to build consensus, sound planning practices and 

realistic decision making for the future. Because of MORPC’s role in the region, 

MORPC’s Transportation Policy Committee was originally designated the 

Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) for the Columbus urbanized area in 

1964 and re-designated in 1973. 
 

 
MORPC AS THE MPO 

 

 
 

As the MPO, MORPC’s Transportation Policy Committee conducts the federally 

required 3C (continuous, cooperative and comprehensive) transportation planning 

process.  This process results in plans and programs that consider all 

transportation modes and supports the goals of the metropolitan transportation 

plan.  It is the basis for the development of the 20-year Metropolitan 

Transportation Plan and the 4-year Transportation Improvement Program (TIP). 

The plans and programs lead to the development and operation of the region’s 

integrated, multimodal transportation system that facilitates the efficient and 

economic movement of people and goods. 

 
Public involvement provides a deliberative and transparent process for people 

affected by the projects, strategies and initiatives recommended from the 

transportation planning process.  “People” as defined here include the general 



 
 

TRANSPORTATION PUBLIC 

INVOLVEMENT PLAN 2015 

2 

 

 

 

 

public as well as major stakeholders, special interest groups, those traditionally 

underserved by transportation, minorities, people with disabilities, freight 

shippers, providers of freight transportation services, and neighborhood and civic 

associations.  Input from all of these groups creates a more inclusive process in 

shaping the development of the metropolitan transportation plan and the TIP. 
 

 
The public involvement process encourages early and continuous involvement 

that not only helps to develop plans that accommodate the needs of the traveling 

public but also the efficient movement of goods. Public involvement is also 

required by the Metropolitan Planning Regulations of the United States 

Department of Transportation 23 CFR 450.316, 49 U.S.C. 5307(b)(1-7) and FTA 

Circular 9030.1E.  This Public Involvement Plan (PIP) is the process by which 

public involvement activities are conducted by MORPC’s Public & Government 

Affairs Department. 

 
The transportation planning process is complex and due to its complexity, the 

general public is encouraged to view the website, solicit presentations, and attend 

meetings and other public forums to gain an understanding of the process and 

plans. The meetings are designed not only to educate and inform the public but 

also to allow the public the opportunity to provide input into the various elements 

of the planning and decision-making process. 
 
 

INTENT OF THE TRANSPORTATION PUBLIC INVOLVEMENT PLAN 
 

 
 

The PIP is designed to provide the public reasonable opportunity to participate in, 

review, and comment on the formulation of transportation policies, plans, and 

programs. This process provides a set of procedures to be consistently and 

comprehensively applied to incorporate the public’s involvement in the 

transportation planning process including the planning and development of the 

Central Ohio Transit Authority’s (COTA’s) and Delaware Area Transit Agency’s 

(DATABus’s) programs and projects. The PIP further serves to satisfy the public 

involvement requirements for Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Section 5307 

Urbanized Area Formula Program grant funding received by both COTA and 

DATABus. 

 
It is the intent of the MPO to utilize this process in a proactive manner to solicit 

input from a broad representation of the community.  The MPO will secure data and 

consult with resource agencies, social service agencies, environmental groups and 

associations, state, county and local governmental agencies, townships, and other 

non-governmental agencies. The MPO actively seeks the views of the minority, 

people with disabilities, low-income and other populations traditionally underserved 

by transportation to ensure that a broad representation is obtained. 



 
 

TRANSPORTATION PUBLIC 

INVOLVEMENT PLAN 2015 

3 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

The overall process is based upon the following goals: 

 
 Provide timely information about planning issues and processes to the public. 

 Foster transparency by providing reasonable public access to technical and policy 

information used in the development of transportation plans. 

 Provide adequate notice of public involvement and planning activities. 
 Continually seek specific ways to engage and consider the needs of all segments 

of the population. 

 Obtain early and continuous public involvement in the transportation planning 

process. 

 
The PIP is reviewed periodically by the Ohio Department of Transportation, the 

Federal Highway Administration and the Federal Transit Administration to ensure that 

full and open access is provided by the MPO, COTA and DATABus in the decision- 

making process. The Public Involvement Plan outlined in the following section 

enhances the opportunity for public input and satisfies federal requirements for 

public participation. 
 

 

TRANSPORTATION PUBLIC INVOLVEMENT PLAN 
 

 

The transportation planning area for the MPO includes Delaware and Franklin 

counties, Bloom and Violet townships in Fairfield County, New Albany, Pataskala and 

Etna Township in Licking County, and Jerome Township in Union County.  The MPO 

boundaries of the planning area are updated every 10 years based on the results of 

the national census.  There are currently no Tribal lands or federal public lands 

identified in the MPO planning area. 

 
MORPC uses a three-tier process to solicit input in the development of transportation 

plans, programs and policies. This process includes a structured MPO committee 

process, a project-specific process and a public outreach/information dissemination 

effort tailored to meet specific needs. 
 

 
 
 

Tier 1: MPO’s Committee Structure 
 

 
 

The MPO’s existing public involvement structure incorporates the activities of 

three transportation committees: the Transportation Policy Committee, the 

Transportation Advisory Committee (TAC) and the Community Advisory Committee 

(CAC). 



TRANSPORTATION PUBLIC 
INVOLVEMENT PLAN 2015 

4 

 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Transportation 

Policy Committee 
 
 
 
 

Transportation 
Advisory Committee 

(TAC) 
MPO Staff

 

Community Advisory 
Committee 

(CAC) 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Transportation Policy Committee - The Policy Committee is the MPO.  It is responsible 

for the review and adoption of all MPO planning work products such as the PIP, the 

Planning Work Program (PWP), the 20-year Metropolitan Transportation Plan, the 4- 

year TIP, area studies, corridor plans, amendments to adopted plans and programs 

and COTA’s and DATABus’s programs and projects, and Section 5307 Urbanized Area 

Formula annual Program of Projects.  This committee, upon recommendations from 

TAC and CAC, makes decisions on transportation policy. 

 
The Policy Committee includes the representation of local elected officials, officials of 

agencies that administer or operate major modes or systems of transportation, 

appropriate state officials, and chair of the CAC. 

 
Transportation Advisory Committee (TAC) – TAC provides technical advice, assistance, 

and recommendations to the Policy Committee and MPO staff.  TAC reviews the 

procedures for and results of the various phases of the transportation planning 

process and special studies, methodology, projections, assumptions, and 

recommended plans, programs, strategies and solutions before submission to the 

Policy Committee. 

 
TAC’s membership represents state, local, and federal transportation agencies, public 

utilities, public and private transportation providers, environmental and freight 

interests, and consultants. 
 

 
The Community Advisory Committee (CAC) – The CAC provides recommendations to 

the Policy Committee from a citizen, special interest and community perspective.  The 

CAC is one method by which the public can review and participate in all current 

transportation planning efforts, projects and issues. 



TRANSPORTATION PUBLIC 
INVOLVEMENT PLAN 2015 

5 

 

 

 
  

 
The CAC membership, as defined by its bylaws, is a broad representation of the 

community including, but not limited to, low-income and minority households, special 

interest groups, neighborhood and area commissions and those traditionally 

underserved by transportation. 

 
By having a membership which usually serves for several years, the CAC becomes 

educated about the often complicated transportation issues, constraints, and 

processes and their relationship to other conditions in the community. For more 

information see the CAC Bylaws (Appendix A). 
 

 
Tier 2: Project-Specific Public Involvement 

 

 
Participation in specific studies occurs through the formation of committees or the 

utilization of standing committees. The committee’s structure is reviewed to 

ensure that the appropriate segments of the population and specific special 

interests are represented and encouraged to participate.  The committee members 

assist by addressing study issues through reviewing and providing feedback on 

information presented, answering questions at public meetings and by providing 

information to local constituents. 

 
Agencies that undertake area studies and corridor plans, where there is a specific 

need of intensive study to determine potential transportation needs and impacts 

and which will be formally adopted by the MPO follow this process.  Persons who 

may be impacted directly by the study results are involved through the following 

process: 

 
 Advisory groups may be established for the study or standing committees that 

include the representation of specific target groups. Representatives from 

appropriate neighborhood and area commissions, employers, resource 

agencies, businesses, special interests, and local, state and federal 

transportation agencies are invited to participate. The advisory group meetings 

are held in venues convenient to the study area. 

 
 Public meetings are scheduled in the study area.  Invitations to attend the 

meetings are placed on the Agency website and Facebook, placed in electronic 

newsletters, and distributed by direct and electronic mail to neighborhood and 

civic associations, employers, businesses, resource agencies, media and local 

communities in the study and transportation planning area. 

 
Interim and final results of these studies are presented to the advisory groups, CAC, 

TAC, Transportation Policy Committee and other interested groups and 

communities.  Short, written reports on progress may also be provided. 

 
Information on the study milestones may be displayed in a newsletter and 

distributed to the media, general public, and public libraries, placed on a website 

and on social media.  A website specifically for the study may be developed. 



6 

TRANSPORTATION PUBLIC 
INVOLVEMENT PLAN 2015 

 

 

 
  

 
 

If this is the case, all written documents and presentations will include the web 

address of the study. 

 
All study plans, draft and final versions, are available for public review and 

comment at area libraries, the performing agency, and on the website. Upon 

request, MPO work products and documents are made available in alternative 

formats. 

 
Tier 3: Public Outreach/Information Dissemination 

 

 
 

MORPC involves the public in the transportation planning process through an array 

of outreach methods. Public meetings, one-on-one contacts, social media, 

presentations and the website are used to engage the public in the planning 

process.  Upon request, MPO work products and documents are made available in 

alternative formats. 

 
Public Outreach 

 
The public outreach program for the Metropolitan Transportation Plan, the TIP, 

COTA, DATABus and FTA Section 5307 Program of Projects includes the following: 

 
Legal notices are placed, as required by 23 CR Part 450.316, in local newspapers 

(with the largest circulation for each county and minority newspapers) prior to 

public review periods for the Metropolitan Transportation Plan, the TIP and all 

public hearings. MORPC’s Calendar of Events is updated and press releases are 

distributed to the media announcing the availability of draft and final major 

reports, public review periods, public meetings and other transportation planning 

efforts. 

 
Posting of information on all transportation programs and projects including links 

to significant projects located within the transportation planning area that are not 

conducted by MORPC can be found at  www.morpc.org.  Public comments can be 

submitted on the website, by electronic mail or sent through U.S. mail. 

 
Announcements to review draft reports and attend public meetings are sent to 

neighborhood and civic associations, local communities, special interest groups, 

businesses and resource agencies by direct and electronic mail, placed on social 

media and included in electronic newsletters. 

 
MORPC’s periodic publications that provide information pertaining to various 

transportation activities include an electronic newsletter, Regional eSource and 

the agency print newsletter, MORPConnection. 

 
Copies of all drafts and final reports are distributed to the metropolitan libraries 

and state library in the transportation planning area, and are placed on the 

website at www.morpc.org/transportation. 

http://www.morpc.org/
http://www.morpc.org/transportation


7 

TRANSPORTATION PUBLIC 
INVOLVEMENT PLAN 2015 

 

 

 
  

 
 
 

CONSULTATION 
 

 
As the MPO, MORPC conducts a transportation planning process that is continuous, 

cooperative and comprehensive with a 20-year horizon. This process results in plans 

and programs that consider all transportation modes and supports the goals in the 

metropolitan transportation plan. During this process, MORPC as the MPO will consult 

agencies and officials responsible for other planning activities within the metropolitan 

planning area that are affected by transportation (state and local planned growth 

agencies, airport operations, freight movements, safety agencies, active transportation 

groups, non-profit organizations, environmental protection groups, economic 

development agencies) and provide for the design and delivery of transportation 

services. 

 
The consulting agencies will provide input and comments to MORPC, the Ohio 

Department of Transportation, COTA and DATABus (current plans, studies, data, and 

analysis) on the various components of the transportation planning process. The input 

will be considered and provided to the public for review and comment during each of 

the milestones: 

 
 Evaluating the current transportation system and future needs 

 Identifying performance measures and implementation strategies addressing 

deficiencies in the transportation system 

 Identifying a fiscally balanced financial plan that can be expected for 

implementation 

 Announcement of strategies, solutions and projects 
 

 
 

METROPOLITAN TRANSPORTATION PLAN PUBLIC INVOLVEMENT 

PROCEDURES 
 

The various components of the Metropolitan Transportation Plan are presented to 

the CAC, TAC and Transportation Policy committees for review and comment over 

the course of its development.  A notice of availability of the draft documents for 

review with a minimum 30-day comment period by the general public is distributed 

by social media, and by direct and electronic mail to neighborhood and civic 

associations, employers, resource agencies, media, and local communities.  A 

notice of availability and copies of draft documents are distributed to area libraries 

and placed on the website at 

http://www.morpc.org/transportation/overview/main.asp. 
 

The MPO hosts an open house 30 days prior to the adoption of the transportation 

plan.  A formal presentation is provided, the various components of the 

transportation plan are displayed and MPO staff is available to answer questions. 

Invitations to attend the open house are distributed by direct and electronic mail 

http://www.morpc.org/transportation/overview/main.asp


8 

TRANSPORTATION PUBLIC 
INVOLVEMENT PLAN 2015 

 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 

and social media to CAC, TAC, Transportation Policy Committee members, 

neighborhood and civic associations, employers, resource agencies, social service 

agencies, media, and local communities in the transportation planning area.  A copy of 

the formal presentation is placed on the website. Upon request, MPO work products 

and documents are made available in alternative formats. 

 
All comments received are considered public comments, and therefore are subject to 

disclosure under Ohio’s Public Records Act.  All public comments received are reviewed 

for consideration and if found appropriate, are incorporated into the document.  All 

responses are included in the final adopted document in a separate appendix. Copies 

of the final adopted document are sent to metropolitan libraries and the state library in 

the transportation planning area. 

 
In order for transportation projects to be eligible for federal funding, they must be 

included in the Metropolitan Transportation Plan.  At times it may be necessary to 

amend the Metropolitan Transportation Plan. Amendments to the Metropolitan 

Transportation Plan will be made available to the public for a 30-day comment period 

prior to approval. The amendment is brought before the CAC, TAC and Policy 

Committees for approval. The amendment and the revised Metropolitan 

Transportation Plan including the revised project listing, map and other amendment 

changes will be placed on the website. 

 

TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM (TIP) PUBLIC 

INVOLVEMENT PROCEDURES 
 

Prior to the development of the draft TIP, a legal notice is placed in the major local and 

minority newspapers announcing the update.  The notice will satisfy requirements for 

public participation in the development of FTA Section 5307 Program of Projects. A 

notice announcing the availability of the draft TIP for review with a minimum 30-day 

comment period is sent to CAC, TAC, Transportation Policy Committee members, 

neighborhood and civic associations, employers, resource agencies, media, and local 

communities in the transportation planning area.  The notice distributed by direct and 

electronic mail and social media announces the comment period and states where a 

copy of the document can be obtained or viewed. The draft document is distributed to 

the metropolitan libraries and the state library in the planning area and placed on the 

website at 

http://www.morpc.org/transportation/overview/transportation_improvement.asp. 

 
MORPC hosts an open house 30 days prior to the adoption of the TIP.  Elements of the 

TIP, including FTA Section 5307 Program of Projects, are displayed and a presentation 

is conducted on the information. The presentation is placed on the website. MPO staff 

is available to answer questions. Invitations to attend the open house are distributed 

by electronic and direct mail, and social media to CAC, TAC, Policy Committee 

members, neighborhood and civic associations, employers, resource agencies, media, 

and local communities in the transportation planning area. Upon request, MPO work 

products and documents are made available in alternative formats. 

http://www.morpc.org/transportation/overview/transportation_improvement.asp


TRANSPORTATION PUBLIC 
INVOLVEMENT PLAN 2015 

9 

 

 

 
  

Comments are received electronically, by U.S. mail, or submitted in writing at public 

meetings.  MORPC will accommodate the needs of any public in submitting 

comments. All public comments received are considered and responses are 

included in the final adopted document located in a separate appendix.  Copies of 

the final document are placed on the website and sent to the metropolitan libraries 

and the state library in the transportation planning area. 

 
Periodically amendments to the TIP are needed because the schedule, scope or 

funding of a transportation project needs to be revised or a new project added to the 

TIP.  Notice of the amendment will also satisfy the public participation requirements 

for FTA Section 5307 annual Program of Projects. The amendment is brought before 

the CAC, TAC and Transportation Policy Committees for approval.  Notification of a 

TIP amendment will be included on the committees’ agendas. Significant 

amendments are made available to the public for a 30-day comment period prior to 

approval.  All amendments to the TIP are placed on the website. 
 

 

ENVIRONMENTAL JUSTICE 
 

Recognizing that the impacts of federal programs and activities may raise questions of 

fairness to affected groups, President Clinton, on February 11, 1994, signed Executive 

Order 12898: Federal Actions to Address Environmental Justice in Minority Populations 

and Low-Income Populations. The needs of those traditionally underserved by the 

existing transportation system are sought and considered by the MPO. The following 

actions are meant to reduce the barriers for participation in the decision-making process 

by low-income and/or minority residents, elderly, or people with disabilities. 

 
Post card notices are mailed informing the underserved populations of opportunities to 

participate, major milestones, and public meetings. When possible, public meetings are 

held in locations that are located along a transit bus route, convenient to low-income 

populations and accessible to people with disabilities.  Such locations include public 

libraries, schools, community centers, and churches.  Agencies and organizations that 

represent these populations are included in mailings. 

 
Upon request, MPO work products and documents are made available in alternative 

formats. 



TRANSPORTATION PUBLIC 
INVOLVEMENT PLAN 2015 

10 

 

 

 
 

 

 
 

AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT 
 

 
The Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (ADA)  http://www.ada.gov/pubs/ada.htm is 

a civil rights statute that prohibits discrimination against people with disabilities in all 

aspects of life.  ADA therefore calls for federally assisted programs to be accessible to 

people with disabilities.  People with disabilities are encouraged to participate through 

MORPC’s CAC and to get involved in the development and improvement of 

transportation and paratransit plans and services. All public meetings conducted by the 

MPO take place at locations that have accessible facilities so as to accommodate 

people with mobility limitations. 

 
MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION NONDISCRIMINATION 

COMPLAINT PROCEDURES FOR PROGRAMS OR ACTIVITIES OF 

MORPC 
 

MORPC does not discriminate on the basis of age, race, color, national origin, gender, 

sexual orientation, familial status, religion or disability in programs, services or in 

employment. Information on non-discrimination and related MORPC policies and 

procedures is available at www.morpc.org.  The information is also publically displayed 

in all MORPC conference rooms, lobby and lounge areas. Nondiscrimination procedures 

cover all external complaints regarding MORPC programs and activities filed under Title 

VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 or 49 CFR 21 and are available at: 

www.morpc.org/about-morpc/overview/policies/title-vi, “Nondiscrimination in the 

Federally Assisted Programs of the Department of Transportation.” Information on how 

to file a complaint can be viewed on MORPC’s website at 

www.morpc.org/about-morpc/overview/policies/non-discrimination-complaints, or a 

hard copy may be requested by calling the Director of Human Resources at (614) 228- 

2663. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Rev June 2015 

http://www.ada.gov/pubs/ada.htm
http://www.morpc.org/
http://www.morpc.org/about-morpc/overview/policies/title-vi
http://www.morpc.org/about-morpc/overview/policies/non-discrimination-complaints


 

 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

111 Liberty Street, Suite 100 

Columbus, Ohio 43215 
 
 

T 614.228.2663 

TTY 614.228.2663 

www.morpc.org 

http://www.morpc.org/


 

Memorandum 
 

TO: 

 

Community Advisory Committee 

Transportation Advisory Committee 

 

FROM: 

 

Nick Gill, Assistant Director 

Transportation Systems & Funding 

 

DATE: 

 

August 26, 2015 

SUBJECT: Proposed Resolution T-17-15: “ESTABLISHING PRIORITIES FOR 

APPLICATIONS SUBMITTED TO THE OHIO STATEWIDE URBAN 

CMAQ COMMITTEE” 

  
Resolution T-17-15 is to identify the top four priorities for projects being submitted 

from MORPC for CMAQ funding to the Ohio Statewide Urban CMAQ Committee 

(OSUCC). This is in accordance with the statewide process and evaluation criteria as 

collectively established by the eight large MPOs. 

 

In 2012, ODOT directed the eight large MPOs in Ohio to establish one statewide 

process to manage and select projects to utilize the approximately $59 million 

annually that ODOT allocates collectively to those MPOs. Previously, each MPO was 

allocated funds individually. MORPC’s allocation was about $11 million per year. The 

eight large MPOs established the OSUCC, which includes representatives from the 

transportation departments of each of these MPOs. Throughout 2013, they worked 

to establish the procedures and evaluation criteria to select projects and manage the 

pooled funding. They completed this process at the end of 2013, and implemented it 

for the first time in 2014 committing CMAQ funds through 2020. It is now being 

implemented for the second time committing CMAQ funds through 2021. Following 

this, the process will occur biennially.  

 

MORPC staff incorporated the statewide process into its 2014 project solicitation 

process, which was adopted via Resolution T-3-14 in April 2014. In short, we did not 

create a separate process to solicit projects for statewide CMAQ funding. Our biennial 

solicitation and selection process establishes the projects toward which MORPC will 

commit its federal transportation funding (including its expected proportional share 

of CMAQ through the OSUCC process). Staff then determines which projects are 

CMAQ-eligible and completes the OSUCC summary sheet for each project, scores it 

per the statewide criteria, then submits it to the OSUCC. The OSUCC schedule 

requires that projects are to be submitted in mid-September. The OSUCC will then 

collectively review all of the applications and scoring and make its selection of 

projects to fund by December.  

 

 



 

 

Memo 

Resolution T-17-15 

August 26, 2015 

Page 2 

 

 

One aspect of the OSUCC evaluation criteria is a ranking of the top four projects 

submitted from each MPO. These projects ranked one through four receive points in 

the evaluation based on their rank. This resolution is to establish these priorities in 

order one through four. 

 

Staff reviewed the projects to which MORPC committed funding via Resolution T-3-15 

and identified five CMAQ-eligible projects to submit that are not currently fully funded 

using CMAQ funding. These are shown in the attachment to the resolution. All 

projects could receive funding through the OSUCC process, even though only four 

projects are ranked. The table also provides the staff ranking recommendations. 

 

Because the Attributable Funds Committee (AFC) is charged with making 

recommendations for projects to use MORPC-attributable funding, staff will also 

present the staff recommendations to the AFC. Unfortunately, with the timing of the 

committee meetings, the AFC will not meet and make its recommendation until 

after the CAC and TAC meetings this month. Thus, although all projects listed on the 

next page will be submitted to the OSUCC, should the AFC differ on the top four 

rankings, staff recommends that the CAC and TAC defer to the AFC ranking. After 

the AFC meeting on September 2nd, this memo will be updated and the ranking 

included in the Transportation Policy Committee packet. 

 

NTG:RN:bsn 

 

Enclosure: Resolution T-17-15 

 



RESOLUTION T-17-15 

 

“ESTABLISHING PRIORITIES FOR APPLICATIONS SUBMITTED TO THE OHIO STATWIDE URBAN CMAQ 

COMMITTEE” 

 

WHEREAS, the Ohio Department of Transportation (ODOT) provides allocations of Congestion 

Mitigation/Air Quality (CMAQ) federal transportation funding to Metropolitan Planning Organizations 

(MPOs) in air quality non-attainment and maintenance areas; and 

 

WHEREAS, ODOT directed the eight large Ohio MPOs to develop one process to manage and select 

projects to use the pooled set of funding allocated collectively to those eight areas; and 

 

WHEREAS, the eight large Ohio MPOs established the Ohio Statewide Urban CMAQ Committee 

(OSUCC) to develop and implement a process to manage and select projects to use CMAQ funds; and  

 

WHEREAS, the OSUCC completed development of the process in late 2013, implemented it for the 

first time in 2014, and is now implementing it for a second time; and  

 

WHEREAS, MORPC incorporated the change in the management of CMAQ funds into the MORPC 

Principles and Procedures for managing MORPC-attributable federal transportation funds in its 

update via Resolution T-3-14; and 

 

WHEREAS, applications from each MPO to the OSUCC for CMAQ funds are due in mid-September and 

an aspect of the OSUCC evaluation criteria included a ranking of the top four (ranked one through 

four) application priorities submitted by each MPO; and  

 

WHEREAS, MORPC staff has identified five CMAQ-eligible projects to submit to the OSUCC from the 

projects to which MORPC committed funding via Resolution T-3-15; and  

 

WHEREAS, the Attributable Funds Committee (AFC) is charged with making recommendations for 

projects to use MORPC-attributable federal transportation funding; and  

 

WHEREAS, MORPC staff has worked with the AFC to establish the top four priorities as provided in 

the attachment to this resolution; and 

 

WHEREAS, the additional projects as shown on the attachment are also being submitted to the 

OSUCC for CMAQ funding; and  

 

WHEREAS, all projects submitted to the OSUCC have already been approved for funding through 

MORPC’s regular project evaluation and selection process; and  

 

WHEREAS, the Community Advisory Committee at its meeting on August 31, 2015, and the 

Transportation Advisory Committee at its meeting on September 2, 2015, recommended approval of 

this resolution to the Transportation Policy Committee; now therefore 

 

 

  



Resolution T-17-15 

Page 2 

 

 

 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TRANSPORTATION POLICY COMMITTEE OF THE MID-OHIO REGIONAL 

PLANNING COMMISSION: 

 

Section 1. That the top four priorities as shown in the attachment are submitted to the OSUCC 

for CMAQ funding. 

 

Section 2. That the additional project shown on the attachment is also being submitted to the 

OSUCC for CMAQ funding. 

 

Section 3. That the Transportation Policy Committee finds and determines that all formal 

deliberations and actions of this committee concerning and relating to the adoption 

of this resolution were taken in open meetings of this committee.  

 

 

 

_________________________________________ 

Eric S. Phillips, Chair 

MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

 

_________________________________________  

Date 

 

Prepared by: Transportation Staff 

 

Attachment: Projects Being Submitted to OSUCC for CMAQ funding 

  



 

Resolution T-17-15 Attachment: 

Projects being submitted to OSUCC for CMAQ Funding 

 

 

 

 

Staff 

Rank 
Project Title Jurisdiction 

Current CMAQ 

Commitment 

Additional 

Request 

Total Project 

Cost 

1 Columbus Traffic Signal System, Phase E Columbus $1,500,000 $9,985,344 $12,831,241 

2 COTA 2021 CNG Bus Replacement COTA $0 $3,299,200 $4,124,000 

4 Bexley Signal System Interconnect Bexley $0 $1,466,227 $1,643,227 

  New Albany Signal System Interconnect New Albany $0 $934,960 $1,615,570 

3 Whitehall Signal System Interconnect Whitehall $0 $1,288,161 $1,595,161 



 

 

Memorandum 
 

TO: 

 

Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission 
Officers and Board Members 
Transportation Policy Committee 
Transportation Advisory Committee 
Community Advisory Committee 
 

FROM: 

 

Thea J. Walsh, Director of Transportation Systems & Funding 

DATE: 

 

August 26, 2015 

SUBJECT: Proposed Resolution T-18-15: "ACCEPTING THE PWP COMPLETION 

REPORT FOR STATE FISCAL YEAR 2015" 
 

Annually, MORPC is required to submit a report to the Ohio Department of 

Transportation (ODOT) describing the work completed with federal planning funds 

provided to continue the metropolitan transportation planning process, as defined by 

MAP-21.   

 

For State Fiscal Year (SFY) 2015, the use of these funds was outlined in the SFY 

2015 Planning Work Program (PWP) adopted by Resolution T-7-14. The PWP serves 

as the scope of work, the schedule, and the budget for the federally funded planning 

activities.   

 

The PWP included such activities as maintaining the TIP, continued delivery of 

projects using MORPC-attributable funds, continued development of the 2016-2040 

Metropolitan Transportation Plan (MTP), assistance on freeway and arterial studies 

such as the downtown, south outerbelt and Far East Freeway activities, support for 

safety and operations and management of the transportation system, and support 

for transit, bike and pedestrian planning. The SFY 2015 PWP also included the 

continuation of ridesharing/demand reduction and air quality awareness activities. 

As part of this scope of work MORPC also prepared the Public Involvement Plan, 

updated the MPO boundary as a result of the 2010 census, updated the functional 

classification system, distributed new bike maps, coordinated the JARC and New 

Freedom competitive selection process, conducted a Regional Data Site Task Force, 

insight2050 and many other projects and activities that have been presented to you 

over the state fiscal year.   

 

A summary of the PWP activities is included as an attachment to the resolution. A full 

report is available upon request.   

 

Resolution T-18-15 approves the completion report and requires that it is forwarded 

to ODOT.  

 

Attachment: Resolution T-18-15



   

RESOLUTION T-18-15 

 

“ACCEPTING THE PWP COMPLETION REPORT FOR STATE FISCAL YEAR 2015” 

 

WHEREAS, it is the role of the metropolitan planning organization (MPO) to help encourage, facilitate 

and provide a forum for regional, cooperative transportation planning and decision-making; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Planning Work Program (PWP) is the document that outlines the work of the MPO, the 

use of regional transportation planning funds and the regional planning activities that will be done 

each state fiscal year; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Policy Committee adopted the SFY 2015 Planning Work Program (PWP) by Resolution 

T-7-14; and 

 

WHEREAS, the activities described in the PWP have been completed or carried over into SFY 2016 

and reported in the PWP Completion Report, a summary of which is attached; and 

 

WHEREAS, major products of the PWP have been presented previously; and 

 

WHEREAS, these products include the core work with the Metropolitan Transportation Plan (MTP), 

the Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) and the continued delivery of projects using MORPC-

attributable funds, as well as the freeway and arterial studies, ‘major-new' projects, local traffic 

forecasting and continuing updates to the travel demand model, support for transit planning and 

ODOT planning studies, ITS, ridesharing/demand reduction, bike and pedestrian planning, safety 

planning and air quality awareness; and  

 

WHEREAS, ODOT requires approval of this PWP Completion Report by the Transportation Policy 

Committee as the Metropolitan Planning Organization; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Community Advisory Committee at its August 31, 2015 meeting, and the 

Transportation Advisory Committee, at its September 2, 2015 meeting recommended approval to 

the Transportation Policy Committee; now therefore 

 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TRANSPORTATION POLICY COMMITTEE OF THE MID-OHIO REGIONAL 

PLANNING COMMISSION: 

 

Section 1. That the Transportation Policy Committee approves the PWP Completion Report for 

SFY 2015. 

 

Section 2. That this resolution and the PWP Completion Report be forwarded to the Ohio 

Department of Transportation for appropriate action. 

 

Section 3. That the Transportation Policy Committee finds and determines that all formal 

deliberations and actions of the committee concerning and relating to the adoption 

of this resolution were taken in open meetings of this committee. 

 

 

       

Eric S. Phillips, Chair 

MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

             

Date 

Prepared by: Transportation Staff 

Attachment: Summary of Completion Report for the SFY 2015 Planning Work Program 




